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Dala. dana 16. 04. 2021. sastavili su | and & member of the Management Bosrd, Soms Zolén
Dals, ou April 16, 04. 2021

|

LIZVJESTAJ UPRAVE O STANJU I POSLOVANJU | 1. MANAGEMENT REPORT ON THE STATE OF
DRUSTVA Z.A 2620, GODINE COMPANY AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS FOR
2020

L.GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE
COMPANY

1. oPC1 PODACI O PODUZECU

Dionitko drustvo za hotelijerstvo i trizam Hoteli Jadran iz | Joint Stock Conmpny for Hotel and Tourisn Hoteli Jadran
Gradca (dalje: Drustvo) nestalo je pretvorbom from Gradac (heretnafier: the Company) was created by the
Hotelsko-uristickog poduzeca Hoteli Jadran i upisano u | trensformation of the social Hoed-Tourist Company Hoedli
spis TT9677166-5, MBS 060040135 dana § ofwka | Jadran and entered in the file TI-96 ¢ 7166-5, MBS

1997.godinz Prevorba se temelii na Odluci o prenvorbi i | 060050135 on March 5, 1997. The conversion is based on
plenju Hrvatshog fonds zs prnvatizaciju od 2 travanja
1996.godine. Osnivackn shugdtina dnsitva odezama je
08.11.1996. kada je pnhvadeno da sc Hoteli Jadn
- pretvore b dionicko druktvo te postanu untverraln stjednik
istoimenog drudtvenog poduzeds. Tanelmi kapital druitva
podijedien je na 107.115 redovadh donica na ime, svaka u
nominalnom iznosu od 700,00 lama.

Trenutna uprava imenovana je ik u rujnu i stoga je jihovo
vodenje posiova utjiecala prakticki na posljednji kvanal
2020. godine, dok je sve ostale odluke vpeave domo
Dio movine tvrike zaloden je u konst Bobemiza Financing
ot wemeljerms shjededeg: 1. Ugovor o lupoprodaji
potradivanja od 2. tavmja 2019. skioplien immedu
prava i obwes prenesena su ns Bobemian Financing Znt.
mm,ammmmjem
Raiffeisen Bank Zrt protiv dnttva Hoteli Jadrn dd. ko
#¢ vodi pod poslovnim brojem OVR-6972019. 2. Ugovor o
kupoprodaji potradivanjs od 30 svibnja 2018. skiophen
| izmedu NLB Lessing do.o. 1 Bohemian Financing Zrt.,
Sva prava i cbveze prencsena s na Bobemuz Financing
Zst. . Radi nmnirenjs gore navedene traZbine, pokrenuta j¢
ovtha NLP Leasing d.<.0. protiv Hotela Sadran 4.4 ko se
vods pod poslovrum brojem OVR-48/2019. § 3. Ugover o
kupoprodiji powabvana od 30. sviboga 2018. skloplim
izmedy OL Nekretmine dow - § Bobemian Finsacing Zn.,
sva prava 3 obveze prencscng su na Bohemisn Fmancng
| Zst, . Rach namuenja gore navedene tradbute, pokremna e
| ovrha OL Nekremina d.o.0. protiv Hoxels Jadran d.d. koja
; se vodi pod poslovaie brojem OVR-48/2019,

3 wa inwmited sesinst Howl Jadren 34 whach s kept under

Decision on the transformstion and dectsioa of the Croatian
Privatization Fund of 2 April 1996. The founding assembly
of the company was beld on November 8, 1996, when 2t
was accepied that Hoteti Jadkan be transformed into a joint
stock company amnd become 8 universal sucoessor of the |
socially-owned company of e same name The share |
capital of the company & divided into 107,115 ordinary
registered shares, each @ the nomunal amount of HRK
700.90,

Curmet mansgement was appoiied only in Sepwember aad
therefore their management affecied practically te bt
quarter of 2020, while all other manapemecnt decamons
| were rendered by the previous mansgement boerd,

t
| Part of company’s aseets sre mawigaged i fvour of
Bobemisn Finanang =t pussuant o the following
1.Cootract on Purchase and Sale of Clasms daied Apnil 2,
2019. concluded bstween Raiffewscisen Bank Zre and
Bohominmn Fmancing 2, all nghts and obliganoas have
been transfieved 19 Bohemizn Financing 71t In order 10
setthe the above claim, the enforcoment of Raiffeisen Bank
Zri was mitisted aguinst Howchi Jadran dil. whuch is kept
under business aumber OVRA27019, 2.Contuct on
Purchase and Sale of Claims dued Moy 30, 2018,
concluded between NLB Lewsing deo. snd Bohemian
Financing Zrt, all wights and obhgaticns have bin
anaferred to Bobemian Financing Z1t. . In order to seitle
the shove clamn, the eaforceman of NLB Lessing doo.
was initiased against Hotel Judrn Q. which is ket wader
business mumber OVR-382019. and 3. Contract on
Purchase and Sale of Clams dued May 30, 2018
concluded berwern OF Nekreomne doo. and Bobemtan
Foawing Zri, sl nghts and obligatons bave boen
| wansferred W Bohomian fmencing Zrt. ln order 1o setiie
tic shove clsim, the enforoement of OL. Nekretune d.o.o,

ey
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Sukiadno gore navedenom Ugovorma o kupoprodaji
trazbina, novi vieroviik Bohemian Fmancing Zn shupio je
na mjesto svrhovoditelja, Raiffesen Back 21t u ovrs koja
s vodi pod brojemn OVR-69/2019 i NLB Leasing do.o. 3
OL Nekretnine d.o.0.

Organi Drugiva:

I.Codl;nNTkMFm,predljech:.kUpuw
2. Soma Zoltin Dala, &ian Uprave

2. Tamds Szulldsi, zamjenik predsjeduika

3. Tamas Kuntér, 8an

Gilavna skupdting: dine je svi dioméari Drufiva.

Drustvo na dan 31. prosinac 2020 godine dr3i 100% udjela
(u dalinjem teksto: Drudtvo):

o HOTEL LABINECA d.0.0., Jadranska 2, Gradac,
OIB: 82215732082,

e JADRAN LAGUNA doo. Jedranska 186,
Gradac, OIB: 569765868791
o FARAON doo, Put Vila I, Trpanj, OIB:

98007195291,

Hoteli Jadran dd su u Servitom kvartaln pokrenult
mkmmmmmmhn
MOsdwamslmmnMuﬂwkop
sede od 1955, mogls suolin & imrzovima treuine |

Mgmmmmmynnamuwmmnmhhmhmaoduacunpmywnhalmg

pewzviesaih uvjcta poslovanja vzokovandh pandemijom |
oovm-wmammmmme.nnmn
odiudilo upravijati trodkovima na centraliztani nalin.
Drattvo odekuje da ée to amopuditi smanjenje irodkova,
zxﬁxxxmmumo&hmmobhzskojnodpvmmmmojwb
nestabilno  potrafnji za  smyck@inim  kapacietuma 1
povedanje kvalitete ualuge. Proces racwnalizacie zapodes
je 8 preuzimangjom zaposlenika drustava koje su u zalzpu
hotela [.sbweca 1 Laguna u Gradeu i Farson u Trpnju, te
kasnije raskidom ugovors o zalpu s sadalmgim
zalospeima,

| business mmber OVR-382019.

Pusuai o the sbove-mentioned Purchase and Sale

the new croditor Bohemian Finsncing Znt.
ook over the position of bailiffs. Ruffasen Bank Zrt in
OVR-69/2019 and NLB Leasing d.0.0. and OL Nekretnine
d.o.o. in OVR48/72019.

Compeny bodics:

Management;
1. Cecilia Nikolctte Fata, presiden:
2. Soma Zoltén Dala, member

Supervisory Board:

1. Dimied Jellinek, president

2. Taends Szdllosi, vico-president
3. Tamis Kunthr, member

Genersl  Assembly: conzists of all sharcholders of the

Company
As a1 31 December 2020, the Company holds a 100% stake
(hercinafier: the Company):

« HOTEL LABINECA d.o.0., Jadranska 2, Gradac,
OIB: 82215732082,

«  JADRAN LAGUNA d.o.., Jadranska 16,
Gradac, OIB: 56976586879 i

«  FARAON d.o... Put Vita 1, Trpanj. OIB:
98007195291,

Afier the new mansgeroent wes sppoinied. they have
initisted & full legal, finencisl and HR review of Hoteli
Jadran and i#t's subsidiaries. In this regard Hoteti Jadran dd.
Inmched a process 10 stresmline the company's operations

tradition of hotel business danng back w0 1955 could face |
the challenges of the curent pandemic to the most efficient |
wity. Due to the difficult and uncertam business conditions
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic the poor results of the
from before 2020, the Company decided to mansge costs in
8 contrafized manner. The company expects hat this wall
enshle cost reduction, more efficient sall mobiliry that
ooresponds 10 e cwrent very voliilc demand for
accommodation capecities and an increase m the quality of
service. The process of mtionalizanon began with the
takeover of employoes of the companies that Jessed the |
bowls Labineca and Laguna in Gmadac and Famon @
Trpanj, and Iater the termination of the Jease agreements
with the tenants followed.
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{ Druftvo u svom sastavu ima 3 hotela. The company bas 3 hotels -~
e H
— T
Tablica |.Pregled kapacitets / Tabie | Hotel capacitics
_Labmea Lagna Fason ]
me;m (11 L 13 LT} |
Sobe / Rooms 216 270 115
| Kreweti / Beds 456 . 5% 245 o
rvor: rjeSenje o kategonizacyje / Source: categorization decision
2.VLASNICKA STRUKTURA 2. OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Temeljni kapital Drustva na dan 31.12.2020. godine iznosi
7498050000 kn i podyelien je na 107.115 redovnih
chonica nominainog imosa svake dionice po 700,00 Sve
dionice nose omaku HIDR-R-A i uvrdtene su u Redovito
uiiite Zagrebetke burze d.d.
U 2020. godini nije bilo stjecanja viasuith dionsca miti th
Druitvo ima otprije. DruSevo u 2020, godini nfje izdavalo
financhske  mstrumente.  Clanovi
mm;mmmmaapmkmmﬁnmmu\|
|

nufe (za 10 pajvelth dionitare}, na dan 31.12.2020.godine.

Share capital of the Company a5 at 31.122020. is HRK
74,980,500.00 and is divided im0 107,115 ocdinary shares
with 2 nominal value of 700.00 each share. All shares bear
the designation HIDR-R-A and are kisted oa the Reguler

Markei of the Zagreb Stock Exchanged.d

In 2020, there were no acguisitions of treasury shares nor
cid the Company have them before. In 2020, the Company
uprave i ¢lanovi did not issue Gnancial wstruments. Membess of the
Managsment Board and membes of the Supervisory
Board are not holders of any financial instuments issued

by the Company.

Deceber 2020,

Vissnidka sirukturn kapitals Hotels Jadran dd. iskazans je | The ownership structure of the capital of Hotel Jadran d.d.
it s steied below (for the 10 largest shareholders), as at 3]

Tablica 2 Pregled vissmuike struktare na dan krags adobija ¢ Ownership structure at the end of the period

Ime i prezime / tvrtka Broj dionica Postotak
[ Name and sumame’company No.shares Percentage
] i TOPAZ D.OO. 92717 86.56
2 IVANOVIC IVAN BOZIDAR 1.539 144
3 RAIFFEISEIN BANK 924 0,86
| ~ AUSTRIADD B -
4 RAIFFEISEINBANK 850 0.79
|  AUSTRIADD
5 CERP/REPUBLIKA 841 0,79
HRVATSKA - _|
6 VUKADIN ZVONIMIR 543 0,51
7. DUJIC BRANKO 175 0,16 I
i 8 HORVAT HRVOIE 132 0.12
! S 1 ODZAK JURE 3 o1 |
10 Grupa raduna 109 0,10
UKUPNO / TOTAL 97.961 9145
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Izvor -SKDD / Source: SKDD

3.FINANCLISKI REZULTAT
3.1 Pribodi

Ukupai poslovai pribodi iskezani u redom dobiti | gubitks
u 2020.godini izose 1.275.942 kn, od Sega je 654.068 kn
| priboda ostvaneno s poduzetnicima unuiar grupe te 611.574
kn ostvareno s poduretmicima izven grupe. Ukupad poslovns
pribodi Dnuftva s 83% nik u odnosu na isio razdoblje
prethodne  godine zhog opdepoznale siuscije nastale
globatnom pandemijom bolesti COVID-19, kosa je najvile
wjecala upravo na turigticki sekior, Zalupai odnosi I»
hotel Farson* 1 botel "Laguna® u wnsti¢ioj sezom 2020.
godine stavijeni su van snage, obzirom da isti mosu poslovali
v poslovnoj godini 2020,

3.2.Rashodi

Ukupni  poslovnd rashodi u  2020.godini zncsili ®
38.083.12] kn dok su prethodne godine i fmomli
8.253.308 kn. Razlog povedamps operstivioh trotkova
odnosi se pa iskezivage nezervacya b ukupnom izsesy od
30.390.582 n za ovrh: u odnosu na postupsk OVR-
4872019 koji 3¢ vodi pred Opéinskom sud o Makarskej -
Stalna shuba u bnotskom.

Trofkovi zsposlenih u ovom razdobljy iznose 1.847.854 kn
, &0 prodstavija povedanje od 13% u odaosu isto razdoblpu |
prodle godine, Povedasje woékova u odnosu m 2019 »
| odoosi 12 Sinjenicu da je u proamcu 1020. povedan broj |
zaposlentkn imanjem svib zposlenika od drultava

Financijski rashodi iznose 5.556.956 kn Ow rashodi se |
najvedim dijelom odnose na ispravak vrijednosh ulagayay |
povezana drubtava u ukupnom iznoss od 5.554.300,00 kn. »
ns riadin kako sijedi-udjelt ¢ druftvy Hosel Labeneca d.g.0.
u iznosa od 1.709.200,00 kn,udieh u drudtvu Hotel Laguna
d.o.o. u iznosu od 345.000,00 kn i udjeli u dnuStvu Famon
d.0.0. v imosu od 3.500.100,00 kn

I

3. FINANCIAL RESULT
3.1.Revenue

Totl opersting revenues shown in the income statement in
20240 mmount 0 HRK 1.275.942, of which HRK 664,068 of
revenues wore generated with entreprenours within the
group and HRK 611,874 were gencrated with entrepreneurs
outsade the group, The wtal ng revenues
are 83% lower compared 10 the same pericd last yesr due to
the wedl-known situstion csused by the global pendemac of
the discase COVID-19, which bad the grestest impact on
the tourism secior. Lease redsticns for the hotcl “Faraon”
and the hotel "Laguna® in the tourist season 1 2070 were
put out of force, since tey did not operate in the business
year 2020,

3.2 Expeascs

Total operating expenses m 2020 amoumied to HRK
38,083,121 while in the previous year they amounted to
HRK 8253,308. The reason for the mcrense m oparstmg
costs celates fo the posting of provisions in the total amount

of HRK 30,390,532 for enforvesnen in relabon to the
procedure OVR-4872019 which is being conducted before
the Municapel Court in Makarska - Permanent Service m
fmotski. Employee costs in this period smount ©o HRK
1.847 883, which i an incresse of 13% compared 10 the
same period last year. Increase 1n costs compared to 2019,
refers W the fict that in December 2020 the oumber of

employees was increased by tking over all employees
from subsidiasies w the parent company.

Finsncial expentes amouni o HRK 5.556956. These
expenses mostly relste o the value sdjusment of
investments m affikated compenies in the total amount of
HRK 5,554,300.00, and in the following manmer: shares in
the compeany Hore! Labineca d.o.o. m the smount of HRK
1,709.200.00, shares in the company Hotel Laguna d.o.o. in
the mmount of HRK. 345,000.00 and shares in the compeny
Farson d.0.0. m the amount of HRK 3.500.100.00

e
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3.3.Dobit \

Rezultat posiovanja je gubitsk 1 Emosu od 42.352.859 kn | The resuht of
dok je prethodne godine iskazan gubitak u Znosu od 42352859 while in

ssmmm@pu&jcmmm
poslovnih  prihods  uslijed  wzvanrednih dmlnoau|
uzrokovanih COVID-19 te iskazivanie rezervaciia.

EBITDA je imosila -32.313.669 kn dok je prethodne
godtine ostvareni EBITD-# iznosila 3.978.639 kn.
ALJUDSKI RESURS! |
Strategija upravijanja Ludskim resursima temelji se na
dvistoj sinergiji odredibta, lokalnog stanovniStva i Drustva
nastoji postii odrZivest osiguravajudi da omjer stalno
standarde 1 prua kookurentsku prednost.

Uhpnyeunzvojosobljaspunimrac‘!misx"uvremmomiI

sezonskog osoblja znatajan je pokretaé rasta 22 Drustvo i |

planiramo nastaviti ulagati u to podnatje

Ns dan 31.122020godine u Driftve je bilo zaposieno
ukupno 71 radnik, » godinu dana ranije 6 radaika,

Omjer ukupnog trofka rada i poslovnih prihoda u 2020.
fii prema podscima iz poslovaih izvieltaja ;
100% dok je u 2019. podini omjer iznogio 21%.

Odnosi sa zaposlenicima se razvijaye zzhvaljujudi vodstvu
Smdikalne organizacije s kojim Uprava svakodnevno

hie. Dektvo u cidlosti primienuie  sklopleni
Kolektivnd ugover .

Druitvo je u suradop sa socijalum pertmerima reguiralo
maierijalra prava za vrijeme rajania izvanrednih okolnosti
wzrokovanih OOVID-19 na nadin da je izvan saage stavijen
dio Kolektivnog ugovora kojim se regulirs obracun i isplata
plaéa i pakmada plada. Za vrijeme trajanis

sukladno odredbama Kolektivoog ugovorn koji je o
U okviru programa zs ocuvanje radnih mijesia Drustvo se
peizavilo na mjere 7adtite zaposiena te dobilo potpory
odrvume radnih myesta  do 31.12.2020. v iznoss od
£:4.250,00 kn.

3.3. Profit

[
aperadomisnhsh:dwunomﬂof}mxﬂ
the previous year a loss in the amoun
of HRK 552,209 was reporied. The reason for the loss is
primarily the lack of operating incoms duc to extraordinary
cramstances caused by OOVID-19 and posting of

provisions .
EBITDA amounted to HRK -32313,669, while in the
previous year the realized EBITDA amounted to HRK
3978639

4. HUMAN RESOURCES

The human resources management strategy is based on a
solid synergy of the destination, the local population and the
Company # looking 1o achicve sustainability by making
sure the ratio of full tme and scasonal workers mect
industry standards and provides a competitive advaniage .

Investment in the development of both full-time and
seasonal staff is a significant enabler of growth for the
Company and we plan to continue investment in the area.”

As of December 31, 2020, the Compeny bad a total of 71
emnployoes, and a year earlier 6 employoes. ;

The ratio of total labor costs and operating revemies in
2020, sccording to data from business reports, was 100%.
whilke 1 2019 the rsto was 21%.

Relationhips with employess are developing thanks to the
Jeadership of the Trade Umion, with which the Management
cooperates on a daily basis. The Compeny fully applies the

circumstances catsed by COVID-19 by repealing past of |
the Collective Agreament which regulates the calculation
and payment of salaries and wages. Dunng excepbonal
circumstances, employers are not obliged to pay employos
2 salary in accordance with the provisions of the Collective
Agreement spplicable to the employer.
Aspmofﬂriabmm:@mmgmdmCmny
applied for cmployment profection MCEsUIGS and received
support fix job preservation until 31.12.2020. = the amount
of HRK 94.250.00,
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[SRISK MANAGEMENT

Upravijanje rizicima sastavnd je dio planinania | sparvijenje Rﬂmhmwggﬂpmofplmngmd
posioviim  procesioa @2 je berinne o3 standardima mensging business peooesses and is based on standards of
opeaativaih procedurs, misgi 1 viaji te mskomskim 3 misaen and vision, and legal
okvirime. Aktivoost koje Drultvo obavia i szpomkd fumeworks. The activies performed by the Company and
kamkicr poslovarys izlafu g memin ribams n'.lh- ! of oprations exposz it to various risks,
operstivaom, vakutnotn, kveditnom, kamatnorn | riziku ramdy operstionsl. cmTency, orodit, terest mase aod
likviinost | hguidity nisk.

S.NACIN UPRAVLJANSA RIZICIMA

5.1 Operstivis sizik ib.l.t}psmnvm&

Opestvni nok  nsstyge koo posljndica nesdekvated Operstional nsk snecs ws & rosult of madoquass

i veuspjelih auemnih procesa, Gudskog fakiore, md failed internal procosess. haxnaen factor. wtamal or
internih il ekstemih dogadmje U Dnstvu su ov nzic quzm.nlm The Company recogmizes these roks as the

prepozmti hso rizk plasmana

'n&gehn,dnkmdmﬂbmghqlmuhhuduﬂmm
twrhidty, rizik od nemypernth gredaka i prijevan mduika,
ckololia rixik, nzk od mogude zaze u hotcu i fnk od
mogodih porodnih  katsstrofe.  Drodvo  upravija ovim
rizikom v skiadu sa stmicgijom i polinkzma upeaviiania

rizicima.

5.2 Vahstni nnk

Druftvo  sdickino, putan nsmovi, velinw  prihods
ostvange na stramm te2iltima te je zlodeno ¢ valutnom
rinky. Cijene smjekiainil wluga vezane su z8 strane vahute,
proicing ano, & promjens vriodnosti valute  moe
snataino uecsti ne rezultste poslovanye

$.3 Kreditme nzii

quﬁz:&u&usnujepvpomkmmpﬁm&da
| powrativanja prema kupcima ne budu realiziana s den
,m@mm‘ﬂ@dlkwmm
kredimy rizik, obzbvn na visinu promets s pojedinim
| lspcama 1 stamge opée likvidnost u zemlji.

SAKamam nzok

| Bududi ds Drusive nerm zaadagne peibode od kamata koje
ostvaruge, prhodi | nowani wk iz poaloviih sktivaost misu
ovisi o promjenans kamamih stopa. U soukeusi
kratkorotath chvern 78 zymave, depoaite i shino, druftve
ima obvezu 13 koju s¢ ne obratunava kamata obzirom da je
Emmahmpe@eﬁmgmm

!ssmm-m

Uprava kontmuiranc prati 1 vodi projekedju tlkvidnosti.

risk of insufficient number of sessonal workers on the
markes, the nsk of imentionsl mistskes aod fraud of |
workers, cuvivoranental fisk, the sk of possible
}jmmﬁﬁmhmewmtaf&ofmmm
dssters. The Company manages this risk in accondance
with ts risk manegement strascgy and policies.

52, Currency rnsk

The company indirectly, through loascs, genersics most of
its mcome in foreign markess and s exposed 10 aTacy
tisk. Prices of accommodanion services sre bnied 1o foreign
currencics, mostly the earo, snd changes i the value of the

|

z

5.3 Credit risk

| This nsk is recognized in the compaery a3 & posmbility that
wade receivabies sre not realized on the maturity dmbe.
Receivebles from some customers may wciade crodit nsk,
given the amount of tumover with indavidual customers =xd
the staie of general iquidity in the country. 2

$.4, Interont rate risk
|

Since the Company does not bave mgnficant interest
ncome, meome and cash flow from operating sctivitics are
not dependent on changes in inierest rates. In the sructare
of shor-toom Hobibtwes for loans, deposits. oo, the
company has an obliganon on which oo merest is
calculsted, given that # 18 the subect of pre-bankngicy
procoedmga.

5.5 Liquidity risk

manages the hgudity projecbon.
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6.INVESTICIJE
Drustvo u 2020.godini ne biljeZi nove investicije.
7.0PIS STANJA I POSLOVANJA

U cilju uspostave likvidnost i restrukturiranja, Druitve je
podnijelo zshtjev za otvaranje postupka predstetajne
nagodbe, te je 22. ozujka 2013. isti otvoren. Za
predstedajnog povjerenika je imenovana gda. Meri Sitié. U
postupku predstetajne nagodbe, svi vjerovaici su prijavili
svoje trathine te je Nagodbeno vijeée dana 27.06.2013.

17.07.2013.g. Medutim, Republika Hrvatska - Ministarstvo
financija nagodbenom vijeéu je 16.05.2013g. dostavilo
zahtjev za prekid postupka predstelajne nagodbe uslijed
provodenja nadzora nad povezanim druftvima Cije tra¥bine
&ine vedinu ukupnih trafbina zbog utvrdivanja proboja
pravne osobnosti, §to predstavija prethodno pitanje Cije
rjeSavanje moZe znacajno utjecati na ishod postupka.
Povodom tog zahtjeva, Nagodbeno vijece je na ro¢iltu za
utvrdivanje tra¥bina dana 17.07.2013.g. donijelo rjeSenje
kojim se prekida postupak predstefajne nagodbe do
okondanja postupka utvrdivanja zlouporabe prava pred
nadleZnim tijelom i utvrdilo da e se postupak predstedajne
nagodbe nastaviti po primitku izviinog tjeSenja donesenog
u postupku utvrdivanja zlouporabe prava pred nadlelnim
tijelom.

S obzirom da je do dana donoSenja reSenja o prekidu
postupka proteklo 117 dana postupka, te je preostalo samo
3 dana da se postupak pred nagodbenim vijecem dovidi
nakon %o bude nastavijen, $to nedvojbeno nije dostatno za
objavu zakljudka o sazivanju rodista za utvrdivanje trazbina,
eventualnu izmjenu plana predstedajne nagodbe, objavu
izmijenjenog plana, objavu zakljucka o zakazivanju rodiSta
za glasovanje o planu financijskog restrukturiranja i
predstetajne nagodbe i za odrfavanje predmetnog roCiSta za
glasovanje, to je duznik ulofio dana 01.09.2014.2. uloZio
zahtjev za produljenje roka trajanja postupka predstedajne
nagodbe te je Savjetodavno vijede Ministarstva financija
dana 24.09.2014.g. odobrilo produZenje roka za dodatnih
30 dana. Rok za dodatnih 30 dana po&inje te€i od isteka
roka od 120 dana od dana otvaranja postupka predstetajne
nagodbe.

Sukladno zakonu o financijskom poslovanju i predstefajnoj
nagodhi, druStvo svoje tekuée obveze podmiruje u
rokovima predvidenim zakonom, tj. 30 odnosno 60 dana uz
suglasnost povjerenika predstetajne nagodbe. DruStvo na
temelju predloZenog plana financijskog i operativnog
restrukturiranja nudi vjerovnicima predstecajnu nagodbu
koia bi se provela na slijedeéi nadin da se od utvrdenih

s -

—

6. INVESTMENTS \
\

The company does not record any new investments in 2020,

7. DESCRIPTION OF SITUATION AND BUSINESS

In order to establish liquidity and restructure, the Company
submitted a request to open pre-bankruptcy settlement
proceedings, which was opened on 22 March 2013. Mrs.
Meri Sitié was appointed as the pre-bankmuptcy
commissioner, In the pre-bankruptcy settlement procedure,
all creditors filed their claims and the Setilement Council on
27.06.2013. scheduled a hearing to determine the claims for
17.07.2013. However, the Republic of Croatia - Ministry of
Finance to the Settlement Council on 16.05.2013. submitted
a request to terminate the pre-bankruptcy setement
procedure due to the supervision of affiliated companies
whose claims make up the majotity of total claims due to
the determination of the breach of legal personality, which
is a preliminary issue whose resolution may significantly
affect the outcome of the proceedings. Regarding this
request, the Settlement Council at the hearing for
determining the claims on July 17, 2013, issued 2 decision
suspending the pre-bankruptcy settlement procedure until
the end of the procedure for establishing abuse of rights
before the competent authority and determined that the pre-
bankruptcy settlement procedure will continue upon receipt
of the executive decision issued in the procedure for
determining abuse of rights before the competent body.
Considering that 117 days of proceedings had elapsed by
the day of the decision to suspend the proceedings, and that
there were only 3 days left to complete the proceedings
before the setilement council after they resumed, which is
undoubtedly not enough to publish a conclusion on
convening & claim hearing, plan of the pre-bankruptcy
settlement, publication of the amended plan, publication of
the conclusion on scheduling the hearing for voting on the
plan of financial restructuing and pre-bankruptcy
settlement and for holding the hearing in question, the
debtor submitted on 01.09.2014. a request for extension of
the duration of the pre-bankruptcy settlement procedure and
the Advisory Council of the Ministry of Finance on
24.09.2014. approved an extension of the deadline for an
additional 30 days. The deadline for an additional 30 days
begins to run from the expiration of the deadline of 120
days from the day of opening the pre-bankruptcy settlement

In accordance with the Law on Financial Operations and
Pre-Bankruptcy Settlement, the company settles its current
Jiabilities within the deadlines provided by law, ie 30 or 60
days with the consent of the pre-bankruptcy settlement
commissioner. Based on the proposed financial and
operational resiructuring plan, the Company offers creditors

a pre-bankruptcy settlement which would be carried out in
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tra¥bina otpiSu zatezne kamate, ukoliko iste postoje, te
otplatu jelokupne glavnice uz izmjenu rokova dospijeca na
period od 5 godina od datuma pravomocnosti fieSenja o
sklapanju predstefajne nagodbe. Dana 8. lipnja 2017.
odr2ano je rodidte za utvrdenje trafbina te je dana 14. lipnja
2017. doneseno rjeSenje o utvrdenju traZbina Klasa UP-
U/110/07/13-01/1683, urbroj 04-06-17-1683-141. Roilte za
glasovanje o prihvadanju plana financijskog restrulcturiranja
zakazano je za 26. stpnja 2017. na kojem je predicZeni plan
financijskog restrukturirnja  pribvaden. Na gelenje o
utvrdenju traZbina Zalio se vjerovnik Optima Leasing d.o.o.
te je Ministarstvo financija u drugostupanjskom upravnom
postupku donijelo rjesenje 11. rujna 2017. Klasa UP/I1-423-
01/117-02/53 urbroj 513-04/17-4 kojim se uvasava #alba te
se poniStava rjelenje Financijske agencije Klasa UP-
I/110/07/13-01/1683, urbroj 04-0617-1683-133 od 12
lipnja 2017. navodedi da vijeée nije dovoljno obrazloZilo
razloge odbacivanja traZbine navedenog vjerovnika. Na ovo
rjetenje Nagodbeno vijeée HRO1 Financijske agencije je
donijelo novo rjeZenje dana 23. listopada 2017. Klasa UP-
V110/07/13-01/1683 urbroj 04-06-17-1683-221 u kojem
odbacuje prijavu traZbine vjerovnika Optima Leasing d.o.o.
detalino obrazlafuéi razloge donoSenja ovakvog rjelenja.
Rjeenjem od 08.01.2018. (klasa: UPAI-423-01/17-02/72,
urbr. 513-04/18-3) Ministarstva financija, Samostalnog
sektora za drugostupanjski upravni postupek, uvaZena je
#alba vjerovnika Optima Leasing d.0.0, Zagreb na rjelenje
o odbafaju prijave traZbine te je ponidteno felenje FINE,
Regionalui centar Zagreb, Nagodbeno vijete HROI, klasa
UP-V110/07/13-01/1683,  wr.04.06-17-1683-221.  od
23.102017, i predmet vraten prvostupaniskom tijelu na
ponovni postupak. Dana 12.04.2018. odrZano je novo
rotiste za utvrdenje trazbina te je 16.04.2018. doneseno
Rjelenje o utvrdenju traZbina, klasa UP-I/110/07/13-
01/1683, urbroj 07-02-18-1683-229 u kejem je utvrdena i
tra¥bina vjeronika Optima Leasing do.o. sukladno
njihovom trafenju. Drustvo nakon toga izraduje novi plan
financijskog i operativnog restrukturiranja, kao i novi nacrt
predstetajne nagodbe s ukljufenim svim utvrdenim
tra¥binama te ga dostavlja Nagodbenom vijeéu Financijske
agencije koje zakazuje rodidte za glasovanje za 5. lipnja
2018. godine. Neposredno prije odrzavanja rofifta za
glasovanje, Nagodbeno vijeée je od vjerovnika Optima
Leasing do.o. Zagreb i razlutnog vjerovnka OL
Nekretnine d.o.0. Zagreb zaprimilo podneske kojima se
obavjeltava da je izvréen ustup trafbina novom vjerovniku
Bohemian Financing Zrt. Budimpe$ta. Dana 5. lipnja 2018.
odrzano je rodilte za glasovanje o novom Izmijenjenom
planu financijskog restrukturiranja na kojem je spomenuti
plan prihvacen, te je Nagodbeno vijeée HRO1 Financijske
agencije dana 6. lipnja 2018, donjjelo Rjelenje o
prihvadanju ~ Izmijenjenog  plana  financijskog
restrukturiranja klasa UP-I/110/07/13-01/1683, ur.broj 07-
02-18-1683-248 koje je postalo izvidno 26. lipnja 2018.
| godine. Drutvo je 28, lipnja 2018. godine predalo Prijedlog

the following way to write off default interest, if any, and
repaymemﬁrepﬁncipalwid)admngeinmatmity for a
periodofSyemsﬁmnthcdateﬂxedecisiononoonch:dinga
pre-bankruptcy setilement becomes final. On 8 June 2017, 2
hearing for the determination of claims was held and on 14
June 2017, a decision on the determination of claims Class
UP-1/ 110/07 / 13-01 / 1683, registration number 04-06-17-
1683-141. A hearing to vote on the adoption of the financial
restructuring plan is scheduled for 26 July 2017 at which
the proposed financial restructuring plan is adopted. The
creditor Optima Leasing do.o. appealed against the
decision on delermining the claims and the Ministry of
Finance in the second-instance administrative procedure
issued a decision on 11 September 2017 Class UP / TI-423-
01/117-02/ 53 no. 513-04 / 17-4 upholding the appeal and
annulling the decision of the Financial Agency Class UP-1/
11007 / 13-01 / 1683, reg. 04-0617-1683-133 of 12 June
2017, stating that the Council did not sufficiently explain
the reasons for rejecting the claim of the said creditor. On
this decision, the Setflement Council HRO1 of the Financial
Agency adopted a new decision on October 23,2017. Class
UP-1/110/07 / 13-01 / 1683, number 04-06-17-1683-221,
in which it rejects the application of the creditor Optima
Leasing Ltd explaining in detail the reasons for making
such a decision. By the decision of January 8, 2018 (class:
UP / 142301 / 17-02 / 72, reg. no. 513-04 / 18-3) of the
Ministry of Finance, Independent Sector for Second
Instance Administrative Procedure, the appeal of the
creditor Optima Leasing d.o.o. Zagreb on the decision
rejecting the claim was upheld and the decision of FINA,
Regional Center Zagreb, Settlement Council HROI, class
UP-I/110/07 / 13-01 / 1683, reg. 04.06-17-1683-221 dated
23 October 2017, was annulled and the case returned to the
first-instance body for retrial. A new hearing was held on
April 12, 2018, to determine the claims and on April 16,
2018, Decision on determination of claims, class UP-I /
110407 / 13-01 / 1683, registration number ¢7-02-18-1683-
229, was made in which the claim of the creditor Optima
Leasing d.0.0. was determined according to their request.
The Compeny then prepares a new financial and
operational restructuring plan, as well as a new draft of pre-
bankruptcy setflement including all identified claims and
submits it to the Financial Agency’s Settlement Council,
which schedules a hearing for June 5, 2018. Immediately
before the voting hearing, from the creditor Optima Leasing
d.0.0. Zagreb and from the separate creditor OL Nekretnine
d.0.0. Zagreb, the Settlement Council received submissions
informing that the assignment of claims to the new creditor
Bohemian Financing Zrt. Budapest had been made. On 5
June 2018, a hearing was held on the vote on the new
Amended Financial Restructuring Plan, at which the said
plan was accepted, and on 6 June 2018, the HRO Financial
Agency Settfement Council adopted a Decision on
accepting the Amended Financial Restructuring Plan of
clasg UP-I1/ 110/07 / 13-01 / 1683, registration number 07-
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za sklapanje predsteéajne nagodbe Trgovatkom sudu u
Splitu.

U trenutku pisanja ovog izvjeltaja Seka se zakazivanje
rodista pred Trgovatkim sudom u Splita za sklapanje
predstedajne nagodbe. Obeirom na nastupanje izvanrednih
okolnosti izazvanih COVID-19, Trgovagki sud u Splitu je
priviemeno obustavio odravanje rodista. Sukladno odluci
od 29.travnja 2020. objavljenoj na intemetskim stranicama,
Sud &e nastaviti s odr¥avanjem ro&ista od 11. svibnja
2020 Predvidamo da bi predsteSajna nagodba mogla biti
potvidena u drugom tromjesedju 2021.g.

Najznadajniji dogadaj ove godine je pojava virusa COVID-
19 krajem veljage 2020.Druitvo je sukladno novonastalim
okolnostima te mjerama Vlade, kao zakupodavac zbog ovih
iznimnih okolnosti T neizvijesnosti , pristao da toko sezone
2020, suspendira ugovore o zakupu za hotel ,JFaraon™ I
hotel “Laguna” obzirom da hoteli ne€e poslovati u godini
2020Druftvo aktivio prati sve informacije vezane uz
direnje korona virusa, posebice na emitivnim trZidtima i
poduzima sve mjere zaltite preporufene od strane
Ministarstva Zdravstva i Zavoda za javno zdravstvo.
Dru$tvo je u suradnji sa socijalnim partnerima regulirala
materijalna prava za vrijeme dok se ne radi a pristupila je i
pregovorima s ostalim partnerima u cilju revidiranja visine i
naknade za period kada ée operativna aktivnost izostati.
Vlzda Republike Hrvatske je u travnju objavila program
dreravnih potpora za suzbijanje negativnih ucinaka Covid-
19nagospodmstvo.UokvimpmgmmaDm§tvoseprijavﬂa
za mjere zaltite zaposlenja te dobilo potporu za ouvanje
radnih mjesta. Osim gore navedene mjere Drultvo je
odobrena mjera odgode placanja odredenih  poreznih
obveza.

Kszo rezltat konatnog i obvezujudeg zakljutka stefajnog
postupka nad madarskom tvrtkom Dalmécia Holiday Kft.,
Bohemian Financing Zit. postao jedini vlasnik 100%
dionica Topaz d.o.0., vecinskog dioniCara Drudtva.

Na glavnoj skupétini Druitva odrZanoj dana 07. rujna 2020.
donesena je odluka o opozivu ¢lanova Nadzomog odbora, i
to: g. Tamas Vitezy-a, g Janos Cszeszlai-a i gde, Lidie
Deme Deze, te su kao &lanovi nadzomog odbora izabrani g.
Déniel Jellinek, g. Tamds Szilldsi i g Tamas Kuntir na
mandatno razdoblje od &etiti godine,

Nadzorni adbor je na sjednici odrfanoj dana 18.09.2020.g.

02-18-1683-248, which became entorceable on June 3¢
2018. On June 28, 2018, the Company submitted ;'
| Proposal for concluding a pre-bankruptcy settlement to the
Commercial Court in Split.

At the time of writing this report, 8 hearing is pending
before the Commercial Court in Split for a pre-bankruptcy
settlement. Due to the extraordinary circumstances caused
by COVID-19, the Commercial Court in Split temporarily

the hearing, Pursuant to the decision of 28 April
2020 published on the website, the Court continued to hold
hearings from 11 May 2020. We anticipate that the pre-
bankrupicy setflement could be confirmed in the second
quatter of 2021.

'Ihemostsigniﬁcanteventofﬂxisyearismeappeamnceof
the COVID-19 virus at the end of Febmary 2020. In
accordance with the new circumstances and measures of the
Govemment, the company, as a lessor due to these
exceptional circumstances and uncertainties, agreed to
suspend the lease agreements for the hotel "Faraon” and
hotel "Laguna” during the 2020 season, since the hotels
would not operate in 2020. The company actively monitors
all information related to the spread of coronavirus,
especially in emitting markets and takes all protection
measures recommended by the Ministry of Health and the
Institute of Public Health. The Company, in cooperation
with the social pariners, regulated the material rights during
the time when it was nmot working, and it started
negotiations with other partners in order to revise the
amount and compensation for the period when the
operational activity would be absent. In April, the
Government of the Republic of Croatia announced a state
aid program to combat the negative effects of Covid-19 en
the economy. As part of the program, the Company applied
for employment protection measures and received support
for job presesvation. In addition to the above measure, the
Company has approved a measure of defemal of payment of
certain tax liabilities.

As a result of the final and binding conclusion of the
bankruptcy proceedings against the Hungarian company
Dalmécia Holiday Kft,, Bohemian Financing Zrt. became
the sole owner of 100% of the shares of Topaz d.o.0,, the
majority shareholder of the Company.

At the General Assembly of the Company held on
Septembet'i,ZOQO,adecisionwasmadetorecallthe
members of the Supervisory Board, namely: Mr. Tamés
Vitezy, Mr. Janos Cseszlai and Ms, Lidia Deme DeZe, and
Mr. Déniel Jellinek, Mr. Tamas Sz5lldsi and Mr. Tamds
Kuntir were elected a3 members of the Supervisory Board
for a term of four years.

At the session held on September 18, 2020, the Supervisory

BOTEL] JADRAN DD, memcmnammmmmmimm KUNSKE 1330009-1100010347 I DEVIZNI KOD PRIVREDNE BANKE ZAGRED D.O
PEZGHRX; : T980.900,00 CUELOSTLRODASTLIEN
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197115 DIONICA SVAKA HOMINALNE DEJEDNTK

. TRGOVACKE 5UD U SPLITU, MBS: 060048135 TEMELINI KAPITAL:
VE: CECILIA NIKOLETTA FATA, CLAN UPRAVE: SOMA DALA:

KUNA, UPLACEN U NA

VRISEDNOSTT 790,80 KAUNA.PRE| UPRA PREDSJEDNTK NADZORNOG
ODBORA: DANIEL SELLINEK; LET OZNAKA: TT00030KITROTALSE MATICNA DREAVA CLANICA: REPUBLIKA HRVATSKA; ISIN: HRIJDRRAOU; OZNAKA DIONICE: RIDR-RA,
TRISTE ZAGRERACKE BURZE

UVRSTENA NA REDOVITO

9/16

200104-16-HOTELI JADRAN D.D.-MANAGEMENT BOARD REPORT-1D-5213

10



@nio odlku o opozivu g Laszla Attila Kerekesa,
Predsjednika uprave, i gde. Nives Grzunov, ¢lana uprave, te
su kao novi &lanovi uprave Drudtva imenovani gda. Cecilia
Nikoletta Fata na funkciju Predsjednik uprave i g. Soma
Zoltdn Dala na funkciju élan uprave na mandat od pet
godina,

Nskon #to je Uprava sagledala dosadadnje poslovanje
pokrenut je postupak racionalizacije poslovanja dmitva,
kako bi se druftvo 8 dugom tradicijom poslovanja u
hotelijerstvu koja seZe od 1955. moglo suotiti s izazovima
trenutne pandemije na najudinkovitiji nalin. Uslijed
ote¥anih i neizvjesnih uvjeta poslovanja uzrokovanih
pandemijom COVID-19 i lo¥m rezultatima turisticke
sezone, Drultvo je odlutilo upravljati trofkovima na
centralizirani nadin. Drudtvo o¥ckuje da ée to omoguéiti
smanjenje trofkova, udinkovitiju mobilnost osoblja koja
odgovara trenutnoj vilo nestabilnoj potraZnji za smjedtajnim
kapacitetima i povedanje kvalitete usluge. Prooes
racionalizacije zapofeo je s preuzimanjem zaposlenika
druftava koja su u zakupu hotcla Labineca i Laguna u
Gradcu i Faraon u Trpnju, te kasnije raskidomm ugovora o
zakupu sa sadainim zakupcima.

S obzirom na neizvjesnost ne moZe se procijeniti koliko
dugo ¢c trajati i kakve ée efekte imati na poslovanje
Drustva ali se ne oSekuje ugroza dugorotnog poslovanja.

8.OBAVLIEST O ZASTITI OKOLISA

Upravijanje zadtitom okolifa obuhvada odgavomo
poslovanje u cilju ofuvanja okolida, prirode te odnosa
prema drustvenoj zajednici radi postizanja dugorotnog
poslovnog uspjeha i zadovolistva svih zainteresiranih
strana. Drultvo priprema politiku upravijanja okolifem
kojom ¢e uskladiti poslovanje s vaetim zakonskim
odredbama i propisima iz podrudja zaStite okolifa.

9PRIMIENA KODEKSA KORPORATIVNOG
UPRAVLJANJA

Druftvo dobrovoljno primjenjuie Kodeks korporativnog
upravljanja kojega su zajednilki izradile Hrvatska agencija
za nadzor financijskih usluga (HANFA) i Zagrebatka turza
d.d. Zagreb, a integralni tekst Kodeksa objavljen je na
internetskim stranicama Zagrebatke burze (www.zsehr).
Druitvo objavljuje Izjavu o primjeni kodeksa korporativnog
upravljanja kao posebai odjeljak godisnjeg izvjeléa o stanju
dru$tva sukladno €1. 272.p Zakona o trgovalkim drustvima,

Board decided to recall Mr. Liszlo Atila Kerekes,
President of the Management Board, and Ms, Nives
Gmmov,manberoftheManagananBoard,andasnew
members of the Management Board of the Company were
appointed Ms, Cecilia Nikoletta Fata to the position of
President of the Management Board and Mr. Soma Zoltdn
Dala to the position of Member of the Management Board
for a term of five years.

After the Management Board reviewed the cumrent
operations, the process of streamlining the Company's
operations was initiated, so that the company with a long
tradition of hotel business dating back to 1955 could face
the challenges of the current pandemic in the most efficient
way, Due to difficult and uncertain business conditions
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the poor results of the
before 2020, the Company decided to manage costs in a
centralized manner. The company expects that this will
enable cost reduction, more efficient staff mobility that
comesponds to the current very volatile demand for
accommodation capacities and an increase in the quality of
service. The process of raticmalization began with the
takeover of employees of the companies that leased the
hotels Labineca and Laguna in Gradac and Fawon in
Trpanj, and later the termination of the leasc agreement
with the current tenants followed.

Given the uncettainty, it is not possible to estimate how
longitwilllastandwhateﬁ'edsitwillhaveunﬂle
Company's operations, but no threat to long-texm operations
is expected.

8. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION NOTICE

Environmental management includes responsible business
in order to preserve the environment, nature and the
relationship with the community in order to achieve long-
term business success and satisfaction of all stakeholders.
The Company is preparing an environmental management
policy that will harmonize operations with applicable legal
provisions and regulations in the field of environmental
protection.

9. APPLICATION OF THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company voluntarity applies the Corporate
Govemance Code, which was jointly developed by the
Croatian Financial Services Supervisory Agency (HANFA)
and the Zagreb Stock Exchange d.d. Zagreb, and the
integral text of the Code was published on the website of
the Zagreb Stock Exchange (www.zsehr). The Company
publishes the Statement on the Application of the Corporate
Governance Code as a special section of the annual report

HOTELT JADRAN DD, SJADRANSKA 2, GRADAC 21308, OB lmmmmmquWMNh mmznm:mlmmmmzmm
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10.0DNOSI S POVEZANIM DRUSTVIMA

Transakcije s povezanim drustvima unutar Grupe odvijale
su se u skladu s trfifnim principima i primjenom
komercijalnih uvjeta koji bi va#ili da su uspostavljeni
izmedu nekontroliranih strana.

11.NATZNACAINLII DOGADAJI NAKON DATUMA
BILANCE

Kao rezultat preuzimanja 100% dionica Topaz d.o.0. od
strane Bohemian Financing Zrt, proveden je obvezni
postupak ponude za preuzimanje.Dana 1l.sijetnja
2021.cbjavljeno je millienje uprave o ponudi z
preuzimanije dok je 10.veljage 2021.objaviieno izvjedée o
preuzimanju iz kojeg je razvidno da je jedan dionilar
prihvatio ponudu za preuzimanje ciljanog drultva te je
Bohemian Financing zit stekeo 43 dionice kok
predstavljaju 0,04% temeljnog kapitala.

Drustvu j¢ dana 15.02ujka 2021. radi potrebe osiguranja
likvidnosti u okolnostima korona krize s druStvom Topaz
d.0.0., Zagreb, Ulica Ivana Lutica 2, MBS: 100001468,
OIB: 99489283996, kao zajmodavcem, skopilo Ugovor o
kreditu (Credit Facility Agreement) na izmos do
1.000.000,00 EUR, Drustvo ima pravo poviatiti sredstva u
ratama, najvise do ukupnog iznosa od 1.000.000,00 EUR,
do 31.01.2022.g. Rok povrata svakog pojedinog zajma je
31.01.2022.g,, s kamatom od 5% godifnje.

15.0fujka 2021.predsjednica Trgovatkog suda u Splitu
donosi naredbu da se predmet predstefajne nagodbe
duznika Hotela Jadran d.d. koji se vodi pod brojem Stpa-
1/18 , zbog opravdanog izbivanja sudca u periodu duljem
od 2 mjeseca , dodijelien novom sudcu.

Budimpesta, 16.04. 202L.g

Cecilia Nikoletta Fata , predsjednica Uprave

%”__

Soma Zoltin Dala, &lan Uprave

- ——
on the state of the company in accordance with Art. 27y
of the Companies Act. \

10. RELATIONS WITH ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Transactions with related companies within the Group were
conducted in accordance with market principles and the
application of commercial conditions that would apply if
they were established between non-controlling parties.

11. MOST SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE
BALANCE SHEET DATE

As a result of the takeover of the 100% of the shares of
Topaz d.o.0. by Bohemian Financing Zrt., a mandatory
takeover offer process was performed. On January 11,
2021, the management’s opinion on the takeover offer was
published, while on February 10, 2021, the takeover report
was published, which shows that one shareholder accepted
the takeover offer of the target company and as a result
Bohemian Financing Zrt acquired 43 additional shares
representing 0, 04% of share capital.

On March 15, 2021, due to the need to ensure liquidity in
the circumstances of the corona crisis, Topaz doo, Zagreb,
Ulica Ivana Ludiéa 2, MBS: 100001468, OIB:
00489283996, as a lender, concluded a Credit Facility
Agreement in the amount of up to EUR 1,000,000.00. The
Company has the right to withdraw funds in installments,
up to a total amount of EUR 1,000,000.00, until January 31,
2022. The repayment period of each individual loan is
January 31, 2022, with an interest rate of 5% per anmm.

On March 15, 2021, the President of the Commercial Court
in Split issued an order that the subject of the pre-
bankruptcy settlement of the debtor of Hotel Jadran d.d.
which is kept under number Stpn-1/18, due to the justified
absence of the judge for a period longer than 2 months,
assigned to a new judge.

Budapest, 16, 04, 2021

Cecilia Nikoletta Fata , president of Management Board
7’7
el

| &

f

Soma Zoltin Dala, member of Management Board

HOTELI JADRAN DD, JADRANSKA 2, GRADAC 21308, O%: AN MR 3006158 ZIRO RACUNE: KUNSKI 2340008.5160910547 | DEVIZNT KOD FRIVREDNE BANKE ZAGRER DL

[BAN HRSII1400091 188010547, SWIST PREGHE2X; TRGOVACKY SUD U SPLITU, MBS

TEMELINI KAPTTAL: 74900.508,00 KAINA, UPLACEN U

[ ok N
167.314 DIONICA SVAKA NOMINALNE VRISERNOSTI M000 KUNAPREDSIEDNTK UPRAVE: CECILIA NIKOLETTA FATA, CLAN UPRAVE: SOMA DALA: PREDSFEDNIK NADZORNO

GDBORA: DANTEL JELLEVEK: LES OZNAKA: TATHOSINKHTROTAUSE: MATICNA
UVRETENA NA REDOVITO TRASTE ZAGRIRACKE BURZE

DREAVA CLANICA: REPUBLIKA BRVATSXA; BRN: HREJDRAASOO!; OZNAKA DIONICE: HIDR-RJ

11186

001 04-16-HOTEL JADRAN D.D-MANAGEMENT BOARD REPORT-ID-5213

12



-~

3. IZJAVA 0 PRIMJENI KODEKSA

KORPORATIVNOG UPRAVLJANJA

Temeljem &lanka 272.p, a u vezi s &l. 250.a Zakona o tr-
govadkim drustvima (Narodne novine broj 111/93,, 34/99,,
52/00., 118/03., 107/07., 148/08., 137/09., 125/11., 152/11,,
111/12., 68/13., 110/15.i 40/19, dalje u tekstu: ZTD) i &L
29. Zakona o radunovodstvu (NN 78/15, 134/15, 120/16,
116/118,42/20 i 47/20) Uprava trgovatkoga drustva Hoteli
Jadran d.d., Gradac/ Jadranska 2 (dalje u tekstu: Druitvo),
dana 16. travnja 2021, godine, daje sljedecu

IZJAVU
o primjeni Kodeksa korporativnog upravijanja

1. Temeljem &. 117 Pravila Burze, Drutvo primjenjuje
Kodeks korporativnog upravijanja kojega su zajednitki
izradile Hrvatska agencija za nadzor financijskih usluga
(HANFA) i Zagrebatka burza d.d. Zagreb, a integralni tekst
Kodeksa objavljen je na internctskim  stranicama
Zagrebaitke burze (www.zse.hr).

2. U protloj godini Dru$two je u bitnome primjenjivalo
preporuke utvrdene Kodeksom, uz odstupanje od nekih
preporuka i smjernica Kodeksa uvaZavajuci koncentriranu
viasnitkn strukturu. Nadzomi odbor Drustva nije osnovao
povjerenstvo za imenovanja i povjerenstvo za nagradivanje,
a iz razloga #to Nadzomi odbor Druitva zbog dovolinog
broja svojih Elanova (i) sam obavlja poslove iz nadleznosti
navedenih  povjerenstava. Clanovi Nadzomog odbora
nemaju statys neovisnog lana. Detalina obrazloZenja
vezzna za neprimjenjivanje odnosno odstupanje od
pojedinih preporuka Kodeksa u 2020. godini Drustvo e
imijeti u godidnjem upitniku koji je sastavni dio Kodeksa i
| koji & se dostaviti Zagrebatkoj burzi d.d. radi javne objave.
Drustvo ulate napore kako bi u $to vecoj mjeri slijedilo
preporuke Kodeksa te objavijuje sve informacije &ja je
objava predvidena pozitivnim propisima te objava kojih
informacija je prvenstveno u interesu dionilara Drutva.
Drustvo planira tijekom 2021. godine svoje poslovanje i
realtate poslovanja i dalje &niti transparentnima i
dostupnima javnosti.

3. Nadzor nad vodenjem poslova Drultva provodi Nadzomni
odbor u skladu sa odredbama Zakona o trgovakim
drustvima. Uloga Nadzomog odbora takoder je regulirana
Statutom Drudtva. Clanovi Nadzomog odbora redovito
dobivaju detaline informacije o upravljanju i radu Druitva
kako bi mogli u&inkovito ispunjavati svoju nadzomu ulo;

3. STATEMENT ON THE APPLICATION OF THE ||
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Pursuant to Article 272.p, and in connection with Art. 250a

of the Companies Act (Official Gazette nos. 111/93, 34/99,

52000, 11803, 107/07, 148/08, 137/09, 3125/11, 152111,
111712, 6813, 110/15 and 40/19, hereinafter: ZTD) and
Art. 22 of the Accounting Act (OG 78/15, 134/15, 120/16,
116 / 118,42 / 20 and 47/20) Management Board of the
company Hoteli Jadran dd, Gradac, / Jadranska 2
(hereinafier: the Company) , on April 16, 2021, gives the
following
STATEMENT
on the application of the Corporate Governance Code

1. Pumsnant to Art. 117 of the Exchange Rules, the
Company applies the Corporate Govemance Code jointly
developed by the Croatian Financial Services Supervisory
Agency (HANFA) and the Zagreb Stock Exchange dd
Zagreb, and the integral text of the Code was published on
the website of the Zagreb Stock Exchange {www.zse.hr).

2. Tn the past year, the Company essentially applied the
recommendations set out in the Code, with a deviation from
some of the recommendations and guidelines of the Code,
taking into account the concentrated ownership structure.
The Supervisory Board of the Company has not established
a committee for appointments and a committee for
remuneration, due to the fact that the Supervisory Board of
the Company, duc to a sufficient number of its members
(three), performs tasks within the competence of these
committees. Members of the Supervisory Board do not
have the status of an independent member. Detailed
explanations related to the non-application or deviation
from certain recommendations of the Code in 2020 will be
presented by the Company in the annual questionnaire
which is an integral part of the Code and which will be
submitted to the Zagreb Stock Exchange dd. for public
disclosure. The Company makes efforts to follow the
recommendations of the Code as much as possible and
publishes all information whose publication is provided by
positive regulations and the publication of which
information is primarily in the interest of the Company's
shareholders, During 2021, the Company plans to continue
to make its operations and business results transparent and
accessible to the public,

3. Supervision over the conduct of the Company’s
operatimsiscaniedoutbymeSupewisoryBoardin
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. The
role of the Supervisory Board is also regulated by the
Company’s Articles of Association. Members of the

Supervisory Board regulary receive detailed information
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[ 1zvjeiée Nadzomog odbora o obavljenom nadzoru vodenja
posiova dio je Godi¥njeg izvjedéa Drultva koje se podnosi
Glavnoj skupStini,

Nadzorni odbor djeluje i preko svojeg pod-odbora:
Revizorskog odbora. Revizorski odbor je tijelo Nadzomog
odbora koje pruZa podriku Nadzomom odboru i Upravi
Drujtva u uéinkovitom izvriavanju obveza korporativnog
upravljanja, financijskog izvie¥¢ivanja i kontrole Drustva.
DruStvo primjenjuje Pravila o primjeni ratimovodstvene
politike, 2 kojim pravilima su uredena primjena postupka i
tehnika u iskazivanju imovine, obveza, glavnice, prihoda,
rashoda i financijskog rezultata Drultva u temeljnim
financijskim izvje¥tajima.

4. Deset najvesih dioniara, sa stanjem na dan 31. prosinca
2020.g. ;w:

on the management and work of the Company in order to
beabletoeﬂ’ectlvelyﬁﬂﬁlltheirsupervisofymle. The
report of the Supervisory Board on the performed
supervision of business operations is part of the Annual
RepoﬂoftthompmymblmﬁedmﬂchmeralAmnbly

the Supervisory Board that provides support to the
Supervisory Board and the Management Board in the
effective implementation of corporate govemance, financial
reporting and control of the Company.

The Company applies the Rules on the Application of
Accounting Policy, which rules regulate the application of
procedures and techniques in the presentation of assets,
liabilities, principal, income, expenses and financial results
of the Company in the basic financial statements.

4. The ten larges: sharcholders, as of December 31, 2020.
are:

Tablica 2 Pregled vlasnitke strukture na dan kraja razdoblja / Ownership structure at the end of the period

Ime i prezime / tvrtka Broj dionica Postotak
Name and surname/company No.ghares Percentage
1. TOPAZ D.0.0. 92.717 86,56
2. [VANOVIC IVAN BOZIDAR 1.539 1,44
3. RAIFFEISEINBANK AUSTRIA DD 924 0,86
4. RAIFFEISEINBANEK. AUSTRIA DD 850 0,79
5. CERP/REPUBLIKA HRVATSKA 841 0,79
6. VUKADIN ZVONIMIR 543 0,51
7. DUJIC BRANKO 175 0,16
8. HORVAT HRVOJE 132 0,12
9. ODZAK JURE 131 0,12
10 Grupa raduna 109 0,10
UKUPNO /TOTAL 97.961 19145

Izvor :SKDD / Source: SKDD

Clanovi uprave i ¢lanovi nadzomog odbora nisu
imatelji bilo kakvih financijskih instrumenata koje
je izdalo drultvo.

Pravo glasa dionidara Drultva nije ogranideno nz
odredeni postotak ili broj glasova niti postoje
vremenska ogranienja za ostvarivanje prava glasa.
Svaka redovna dionica daje pravo na jedan glas na
Glavnoj skupdtini. Drudtvo je ovlajteno izdavati
redovite dionice na ime kao i izdavati i druge vrste i
rodove dionica u skladu sa pozitivnim propisima
Republike Hrvatske i Statutom Drustva. Odluku o
izdavenju dionica, sukladno é&lanku 172 ZTD-a,
donosi Glavna skuptina, a u skladu sa Statutom

Members of the Management Board and members of
the Supervisory Board are not holders of any financial
instruments issued by the Company.

The voting right of the Company's sharcholders is not
limited to a certain percentage or number of votes, nor
are there time limits for exercising the voting right.
Each ordinary share entitles to one vote at the General
Assembly. The Company is authorized to issue
ordinary registered shares as well as to issue other
types and gender of shares in accordance with the
positive regulations of the Republic of Croatia and the
Company's Articles of Association. The decision to
issue shares, in accordance with Article 172 of the

AOTELS JADRAN D0, JADRANSKA 2, GRADAC 2338, OIB: 1899276086; MB: 3034184 2RO RACUNE umnumumnsmmwmmmmmmmmm
AN HRS23400071 100010547, SWEFT PEZGHRIX; TRGOVACKT SUD U SPLITU, MBS: 06080135 TEMELINI KAPT. KAPITAL: MOS0 KUNA, UPLACTN U CUELOSTIIODUELIEN NA
20,40 KUNA_PREDSFEDNTK UPRA' vx.c:m\mumsnanumuwvz.mmmmﬁmmmm
JELLINEK; LES OZNAKA: 767ROMIOKHROTAUSS; MATKENA DRZAVA CLANICA: REPUBLEKA ERVATSKA; I5i: HRHIDRRAS001; OZNAKA DIONICE: FUDR-R-A.
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Druitva,

Prava i obveze Drufitva koja proizlaze iz stjecanja
vlastitih dicnica ostvaruju se u skladu s odredbama
ZTD-a te sukladno tome Druitve moZe stjecati
vlastite dionice na temelju ovlasti Glavne skupstine
za njihovo stjecanje.

lzmjene i dopune Statuta Drutva donose se na
nadin utvrden Zakonom o trgovatkim druStvima.

5, Uprava Druftva szastavljena je od dva ¢lana,
direktora Drultva, od kojih je jedan predsjednik
uprave, a jedan &lan uprave. Direktori vode poslove
Drustva samostalno i na vlastitu odgovornost te
pojedinadno zastupaju drultvo. Prema Statutu
Uprava odluduje veéinom glasova svih ¢lanova, a u
sluéaju jednake podijeljenosti glasova odluéujudi je
glas predsjednika Uprave. Upravu imenuje i opoziva
Nadzorni odbor.

| Funkciju &lanova Uprave do dana 18.09.2021.g.
obavljali su:

1. Laszlo Attila Kerckes kao predsjednik Uprave i

2. Nives Grzunov, kao ¢lan Uprave.

Od dana 18.09.2021.g. pa do 31.12.2021.g. (te do
dana sastavljanja ovog izvje$ta) funkciju Clanova
Uprave obavljgju:

1. Cecilia Nikoletta Fata kao predsjednica Uprave i
2. Soma Zoltin Dala kao ¢lan Uprave.

Glavna skupitina wisi izbor i razrjeSenje ¢lanova
Nadzornog odbora koji ima tri ¢lana. Nadzomi
odbor djeluje kao kolegijalno tijelo na sjednicama
koje se odrfavaju u pravilu jednom tromjeseéno, a
najmanje jednom polugodiinje, a na kojima
raspravlja i odlu€uje o svim pitanjima iz svoje nad-
le2nosti propisane ZTD-om i Statutom Drudtva.
Odluke Nadzornog odbora donose se vedinom danih
glasova.

U razdoblju do 07.092021.g. Nadzomi odbor
djelovao je u sastavu:

1. Tamés Vitezy, predsjednik

2. Janos Cseszlai, zamjenik predsjednika

Companies Act, is made by the General Assembly, in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.

The rights and obligations of the Company arising
from the acquisition of treasury shares are exercised in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
and, accordingly, the Company may acquire treasury
shares based on the authorization of the General
Assembly to acquire them.

Amendments to the Company’s Articles of
Association are adopted in the manner determined by

the Companies Act.

5. The Management Board of the Company is
composed of two members, the directors of the
Company, of which one is the President of the
Management Board and one is a member of the
Management Board. The directors manage the affairs
of the Company independently and at their own risk
and individually represent the company. According to
the Articles of Association, the Management Board
decides by a majority vote of all members, and in case
of equal division of votes, the deciding vote is the
President of the Management Board. The Management
Board is appointed and revoked by the Supervisory
Board,

The function of the members of the Management
Board until September 18, 2021., was performed by:

1. Laszlo Attila Kerekes as President of the
Management Board and

2. Nives Grzunov, as member of the Management
Board.

From 18.09.2021.g. until 31.12.2021.g. (and until the
day of compiling this report) the function of members |
of the Management Board is performed by:

1. Cecilia Nikoletta Fata as President of the |
Management Board and |
2. Soma Zoltan Dala as a member of the Management
Board.

The General Assembly elects and dismisses the
members of the Supervisory Board which has three
members. The Supervisory Board acts as a collegial
body at meetings held as a rule once a quarter, and at
feast once every six months, at which it discusses and
decides on all issues within its competence prescribed
by the Companies' Act and the Company's Articles of
Association. Decisions of the Supervisory Board are
made by a majority of votes cast.

In the period until September 7, 2021., the
Supervisory Board consisted of:

1. Tamdés Vitezy, President

HOTELI JADRAN DD
AN HRMIM00091 100018547, SWIFT
1715 DIOMICA SVAKA NOMINALNE VRUJEDNOSTT 70006 KUN

APREDSJEDNIK UPRA!
ODBORA: DANTEL JELLINEK: LE] GZNAKA: T750NMOKHTROTALS; MATICNA DRZA
UVRSTENA

NA REDOVITO TRESTE ZACREBACKE BURZE

JADRANSKA 2, GRADAC 2133, OIB: 185992769686 MB: 236154 ZTRO RACUNE KUNSKI 2300008- 1100010547 | DEVIZNI KOD FRIVREDNE BANKE ZAGRER DO
: TRGOVACK] SUD U SPLITY, MES: 060040135 TEMELINT KAPITAL: 74.980.9008 KUNA, UPLACEN VU
VE: CECILIA NTKOLETTA FATA, CLAN UPRAVE: SOMA DALA; PREDSJEDNIK NADZORNOG
Va CLANIKCA: REPUBLIKA HRVATSKA; ISIN: HRHIDRRAOL; OZNAKA DIONICE: HIBR-R-A,
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[ 3. Lidia Deme DeZe, &lan. 2. Janos Cseszlai, Vice-President
3. Lidia Deme DeZe, member.

Glavna skup3tina donijela je dana 07.09.2021.g. | The General Assembly adopted on 07.09.2021.g.
odluku o opozivu pgorenavedenih &lanova | decision on recall of the above-mentioned members of
Nadzornog odbora i imenovanju novih &lanova, koji | the Supervisory Board and appointment of new
su na sjednici 18.00.2021.g. donijeli odluku o | members, who made a decision on the appointment of
imenovanju predsjednika i zamjenika predsjednika, | the President and Deputy President at the session on
tako de od 07.09.2021.g. odnosno od 18.09.2021.g. | September 18, 2021, so that from 07.09.2021. that is,
pa do dana sastavljanja ovog izvjeiéa Nadzomi | from 18.09.2021. until the day of compiling this

odbor djeluje u sljededem sastavw: report, the Supervisory Board operates in the
following composition:

1. Déniel Jellinek, predsjednik

2. Tamés Sz3l18si, zamjenik predsjednika 1. Déniel Jellinek, president

3. Tamés Kuntir, ¢lan. 2. Tamas Sz6116st, vice-president

3. Tamés Kuntir, member.

6. Sukladno odredbama &, 250.a st. 4. i &, 272pst. | 6. In accordance with the provisions of Art. 250a
1. ZTD-a te &l 22. Zakona o ratunovodstvu, ova | paragraph 4 and Art. 272.p paragraph 1 of the
Izjava je poseban odjeljak i sastavni dio Godisnjega Companies” Act and Art. 22 of the Accounting Act,
izvje3ta o stanju Druftva za 2020, godinu. this Statement is a special section and an integral part
of the Annual Report on the Company for 2020.

Cecilia Nikoletta gat&, predgjednica Uprave Cecilia Nikoletta Fata , president of Management

Board
Soma Zoltédn Dala, &lan Uprave Soma Zoltin Dala, member of Management Board

HOTELT JADRAN DD, JAURANSKA 2, GRADAC 21300, OTB: LISOSIH586: MB: 3636154 2RO RACUNE: KUNSK] 2340005-1100016547 § DEVIZNT XOD PRIVREDNE BANKE ZAGREB

nwlmlwwm.swmmcnmrmmmmmuwmmmmmMImmmvmmmu

mns&o«msvm mmgnm%mmm;%mwmwwmowmmm tmwmmmmmmﬁmmﬂg
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Responsibility of the Management for the Financial Statements

Pursuant to the Accounting Act of the Republic of Croatia (Official Gazette 78/15, 134/15, 120/16,116/18),
the Management Board is responsible for ensuring that financial statements are prepared for each financial
year in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), as determined by the
European Commission and published in the Official Journal of the European Union, which give a true and

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its business performance for the period.

After making appropriate enquiries, the Management Board has a reasonable expectation that the
Company will have adequate resources for the foreseeable future and therefore continues to apply the

going-concern principle in preparing financial statements.
In preparing the financial statements, the responsibilities of the Management Board include the following:

» selecting and then consistently applying appropriate accounting policies;
= making reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates;

= following applicable accounting standards, subject to disclosure and explanation of any material

departures in the financial statements; and

= preparing the financial statements under the going-concern assumption unless the assumption that the

Company will continue as a going concern is not appropriate.

The Management Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company. The Management Board must also
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Accounting Act. In addition, the Management Board is
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention

and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Management Board is responsible for the preparation and content of the Management Report, in
accordance with the provisions of the Accounting Act of the Republic of Croatia (Croatian Official Gazette

78/15, 134/15, 120/16 and 116/18).

Signed for and on behalf of the Management on 15 April 2021 by:
HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

Jadranska 2

21 330 Gradac

Republic of Croatia

e
——F
Cecilia Nikoletta Fata Soma Zoltan Dala
President of the Management Board Member of the Management Board
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders of HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

Report on the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements

Unqualified Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac (“the Company”), which

comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2020, and the statement of profit and loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes in shareholders' equity and

for the year then ended, as well as notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying annual financial statements present true and fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company at 31 December 2020, its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

as determined by the European Commission and published in the Official Journal of the European Union.

Basis for Unqualified Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Accounting Act, the Act on Auditing and International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are described further in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements section of our Independent
Auditor's Report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Important issue

We draw attention to Note 33 to the financial statements, stating that in March 2020, due to the declared
Covid-19 pandemic, many measures were introduced in Croatia and the world to restrict the movement of
people and goods in order to combat the pandemic, which significantly affect the Croatian and world
economy, ie cause significant decline in economic activity. This decline in economic activities also has an
impact on the Company's operations. At present, it is not possible to reliably determine the duration and
effect of these measures and the decline in economic activities, nor the impact they will have on the
Company's operations. The Management Board of the Company believes that the above will not jeopardize

the principle of unlimited business of the Company. Our opinion is not modified in relation to that issue.

Material going-concern uncertainty
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We draw attention to Note 1 to the annual financial statements, which describes the pre-bankruptcy
settlement procedure. In accordance with the Act on Financial Operations and Pre-bankruptcy Settlement
(Croatian official gazette “Narodne novine” nos 108/12,144/12, 81/13, 112/13, 71/15, and 78/15), the
Company has initiated pre-bankruptcy settlement because of its poor financial situation and the blocked
current account. A voting hearing regarding the Financial Restructuring Plan for the Company was held on
06 June 2018, at which the required majority was reached to adopt the Plan, and the Ruling approving the
Financial Restructuring Plan was adopted. Pre-bankruptcy settlement, which is based on financial and
operational restructuring plan, is excpected to be confirmed. That would be create preprequisites to
eliminate the uncertainty regarding the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. Our opinion is not

modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance for our
audit of the annual financial statements for the current period and include the most significant risks of
material misstatement identified as a result of error or fraud that have the highest impact on our audit
strategy, allocation of our resources and the time spent by the engaged audit team. We addressed these
matters in the context of our audit of the annual financial statements taken as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, but we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Our audit approach

In determining our audit approach, we have considered the materiality of the items in the financial
statements, our risk assessment within the components of each item. In determining the approach to the

audit, we determined the type of work that needed to be done in order to gather sufficient valid evidence as

a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters | Our audit approach

Investments in subsidiaries
In the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 | The Auditor's attention was focused on:
December 2019, the Company discloses | ¢ Has the Company performed an impairment

investments in subsidiaries in the amount of HRK test of investments in subsidiaries in

5,554,300, while in the Statement of Financial accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets

Position as at 31 December 2020 the Company | e¢ Review the financial statements of

discloses investments in subsidiaries in amaount of subsidiaries to confirm the fair value of

0 kuna. investments in subsidiaries measured at of
acquisition

e Based on the information gathered, we are
satisfied that the Company has performed an
impairment test on investments in
subsidiaries (Notes 11 and 15)
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Valuation of buildings
The Company subsequently measures The Auditor's attention was focused on:

construction facilities using the cost method, e Checking whether the net book value is equal
and on 31.12.2020. the net book value of to or lower than the recoverable amount of
buildings amounts to HRK 59,601,827. Given buildings

the significant impact of the COVID-19 e Based on the collected estimates of buildings,
pandemic on the Company’s revenue, the we are satisfied that the net book value of
impairment of buildings was identified as one of buildings is lower than the recoverable
the key issues. amount on the market (Note 14).

Provisions for litigation
In the Statement of financial position as at 31 | The Auditor's attention was focused on:
December 2020, the Company discloses | e Verification of initiated litigation against the

provisions for initiated litigation in the amount of Company according to the received attorney's
HRK 30,390,582. reports on litigation in which they represent
the Company

e In conversation with the Management Board
and review of law received reports on the
state of legal proceedings, the Company is
properly recorded expenses on behalf of
provision (Note 10 and 23)

Other informations in Annual Managemet Report

Management is responsible for other information. Other information includes information included in the
annual report, but does not include the annual financial statements and our independent auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the annual financial statements does not include other information, except to the extent
explicitly stated in the part of our independent auditor's report entitled Report on Other Legal Requirements,

and we do not express any form of conclusion expressing assurance about them,

With respect to our audit of the annual financial statements, it is our responsibility to read other information
and, in doing so, consider whether other information is materially inconsistent with the annual financial
statements or our audit findings or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have done, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. In that sense, we have nothing to report.
Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Annual Financial
Statements

The Management Board is responsible for the preparation of annual finnancial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), as determined by the

European Commission, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
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preparation of annual financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

in preparing annual financial statements, the Management Board is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, including, where appropriate, the disclosure of matters
related to the going-concern assumption and the use of the going-concern basis of accounting unless the
Management Board either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process established

by the Company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
annual financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by the Management Board.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the use by the Management Board of the going concern basis of
accounting. We also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the
auditor's report to the disclosures in the annual financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. Our conclusions are
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based on the audit evidence obtained until the date of the auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the annual financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We are also required to provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we are required to determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the annual financial statements for the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless a law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal Requirements
Report under requirements of Regulation (EU) No 537/2014

1 We were appointed auditors of the annual financial statements for the year 2020 on the proposal of the

Supervisory Board on 15 February 2021.

2 As of the date of this report, we have been continuously engaged to perform statutory audits of the
Company for 2019, from the audit of the annual financial statements for the year 2020, for a total of 2 years.

3 Except for the matters identified in the relevant section of our Report on the Financial Statements as key

audit matters, we have nothing further to report regarding point (c) of Article 10 of the Regulation (EU) No
537/2014.

4 Our statutory audit of the annual financial statements of the Company for the year 2020 enables us to
identify irregularities, including fraud, in accordance with Section 225 of the IESBA Code Responding to
Non-compliance with Laws and Regulations, which requires from us to consider, as part of our audit
engagement, whether the Company has complied with laws and regulations generally recognised to have a
direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in annual financial statements, as
well as other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the determination of material amounts
and disclosures in annual financial statements of the Company, but compliance with which may be
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fundamental to the operating aspects of the Company, to its ability to continue as a going concern, or to

avoid material penalties.

Where we encounter, or become aware of, non-compliance of any of the laws or regulations regarding
matters that are clearly inconsequential, based on our judgement of their nature and their impact, financial
or otherwise, on the Company, its stakeholders or the wider public, we have to communicate such non-
compliance to the Company and request from it to investigate it and take appropriate measures to resolve
the non-compliance and prevent its future occurrence. If the Company does not correct the instances of
non-compliance resulting in misstatements of the audited annual financial statements that are cumulatively
equal to, or higher than, the materiality threshold for the financial statements taken as a whole, we are
required to modify our opinion in the independent auditor's report. In the audit of the Company's annual
financial statements for 2020, we determined the significance for the financial statements as a whole in the
amount of HRK 493,852, which represents the arithmetic mean of the values obtained on the basis of

assets and income given the large disparity between the two.

5 Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Company’s Audit Committee, prepared in

accordance with the provisions from Article 11 of Regulation (EU) No 537/2014.

6 From the opening date of the audited annual financial statements of the Company for the year 2020 to the
date of this report, we did not provide any prohibited non-audit services and in the preceding business year
we did not provide any services of design and implementation of internal control or risk management
procedures over the financial information preparation and/or control, or financial application systems, and,

in performing our audit, we have maintained our independence from the Company.

Report on Other Legal Requirements

1. In our opinion, based on the work performed during the audit, the information in the attached report of the
Company's management for 2020 is harmonized with the attached annual financial statements of the
Company for 2020.

2. In our opinion, based on the work performed during the audit, the attached report of the Company's

management for 2020 has been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Act.

3. Based on the knowledge and understanding of the Company's operations and its environment acquired

during the audit, we have not established that there are significant misstatements in the attached report of
the Company's management.
4. In our opinion, based on the work performed during the audit, the statement on the application of the

corporate governance code, included in the Company's annual report for 2020, is in accordance with the

requirements set out in Article 22, items 3 and 4 of the Law on accounting.

5. The statement on the application of the corporate governance code, included in the annual report of the
Company for 2020, includes the information referred to in Article 22, items 1, 2, 5 and 6 of the Accounting

Act.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Pasko Ani¢-Anti€.

Russell Bedford Croatia — Revizija d.0.0., Zagreb

Selska cesta 90/B

10 000 Zagreb

Republic of Croatia

Pasko Ani¢-Anti¢, PhD Pasko Ani¢-Anti¢, PhD
Director Certified Auditor

Russell Bedford

/ W | Croatie-revizija d.c.o. / .
) T-I._ 1) 7 { . :: Selska cesta 90b/2.k§t i 1 ! A ‘.j
: ; ol e 10000 Zagreb - Hrvatska / Croatia / | (A
' F f P

Zagreb, 16 April 2021
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Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2020

HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

Notes 2020 2019
Operating income
Goods and service sales 4 1,036,128 7,708,877
Other operating income 5 239,814 4
Total operating income 1,275,942 7,708,881
Operating expenses
Cost of material 6 (983,813) (1,562,478)
Staff costs 7 (1,847,884) (1,610,964)
Depreciation and amortisation 8 (4,494,510) (4,523,066)
Other expenses 9 (356,892) (368,617)
Provisions 10 (30,390,582) -
Other operating expenses (9,440) (188,183)
Total operating expenses (38,807,179) (544,427)
(Loss) from operations (36,807,179) (544,427)
Net financial income/(expense) 11 (5,545,680) (7,782)
(Loss) before tax (42,352,859) (552,209)
Income tax expense 12 - -
{Loss) for the period (42,352,859) (552,209)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of } i}
taxes
Comprehensive income for the year (42,352,859) (552,209)
(Loss) per share 13 HRK (395.40) HRK (5.15)

25
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Statement of financial position
At 31 December 2020

HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

Notes 31.12.2020 31.12.2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 66,772,532 71,220,043
Investments in subsidiaries 15 - 5,554,300
Given long-term loans 16 196,566 196,483
66,969,098 76,970,826
Current assets
Supplies 318,435 -
Trade receivables (Nofe 3.29.) 17 1,025,648 1,198,006
Other current receivables 18 720,317 631,441
Current financial assets 19 136,408 126,264
Cash 20 165,652 951,897
2,366,460 2,907,608
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 16,104 31,605
Total assets 69,351,662 79,910,039
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 21 74,980,500 74,980,500
Capital gains 21 173,442 173,442
Legal (statutory) reserves 22 800,000 3,770,050
Other reserves 22 - 12,064,778
Accumulated loss (Note 3.29.) 22 (11,771,935) (26,254,554)
(Loss)/Profit for the year 22 (42,352,859) (552,209)
21,829,148 64,182,007
Provisions 23 30,390,582 -
Long term liabilities 22,413 -
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings to companies within the group 24 7,469,036 7,469,036
Liabilities for received loans 25 2,629,903 1,722,437
Trade payables 26 5,105,859 5,011,779
Liabilities to employees 27 337,848 84,499
Liabilities for taxes, contributions and similar benefits 28 1,519,858 1,395,378
Other liabilities 35,006 36,118
17,097,510 15,719,247
Accrued expenses and deferred income 12,009 11,785
Total equity and liabilities 69,351,662 79,913,039
26

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2020

HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

2020 2019
Operating activities
(Loss) for the year before tax (42,352,859) (552,209)
Depreciation and amortisation 4,494,510 4,523,066
Value adjustment of financial assets 5,554,300 -
Interest and dividend income (11,274) (6,078)
Interest expenses 2,419 17,060
Provisions 30,390,582 -
Other adjustments for non-monetary transactions (352,009) 161,406
(2,274,331) 4,143,245
Working capital changes (without effects, acquisitions and disposals):
Increase/(decrease) in short-term liabilities 1,378,262 (64,154)
(Increase)/decrease in short-term receivables 78,946 (3,739,028)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (318,435) -
Other increases/decreases in working capital - 675
Cash interest expenses - (17,060)
1,138,773 (3,819,567)
Cash inflow from operations (1,135,558) 323,678
Investing activities
Cash receipts from interest and repayment of loans 117 3,275
Cash outlays for the purchase of fixed assets (47,000) (318,635)
Cash outflows from loans granted - (149,950)
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities (46,883) (465,310)
Financing activities
Decrease in short-term borrowings 905,817 -
(509,856) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 395,961 -
Unrealized exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents 235 -
Cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of year 951,897 1,093,529
At end of year 165,652 951,897
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (786,245) (141,632)
28
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

1 GENERAL INFORMATION
Reporting entity

HOTELI JADRAN, a Croatian public limited company based in Gradac, operates in Croatia. Its registered
seat is at Jadranska 2, Gradac. The Company provides restaurant, accommodation and food services, and
is also engaged in nautical tourism and retail trade. The Company is registered at the Commercial Court in
Split, with the registered share capital in the amount of HRK 107,115,000.00. The Company’s tax
identification number (OIB) is OIB 18099276986.

In the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 10 February 2003 a decision was made to decrease the
share capital by the amount of accumulated losses to HRK 74,980,500.00, or HRK 700.00 per share, and

the decrease was registered at the Commercial Court in Split.

At 31 December 2020 the Company is the controlling shareholder of Topaz d.o.o., Zagreb, and the full

owner of the following three subsidiaries:

- HOTEL LABINECA d.o.o0., Gradac
- JADRAN LAGUNA d.c.0., Gradac
- FARAON d.0.0., Trpanj

The Company owns three hotels: the Hotel Labineca, with 216 rooms, the Hotel Laguna, with 268 rooms,

and the Hotel Faraon, with 115 rooms, which are leased out for a fee.

Corporate governance and management

Shareholders' Assembly

Daniel Jellinek President of the Assembly

Supervisory Board

Daniel Jellinek Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Tamas SzollSsi Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Tamas Kuntar Member of the Supervisory Board

Management Board

Cecilia Nikoletta Fata  President of the Management Board
Soma Zoltan Dala Member of the Management Board
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

1 GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Going concern

In accordance with the Act on Financial Operations and Pre-bankruptcy Settlement (Croatian OG nos
108/12,144/12, 81/13, 112/13, 71/15 and 78/15), the Company has initiated pre-bankruptcy settlement
(insolvency) procedures because of its poor financial situation and the blocked gyro account. Based on the
Ruling of the Zagreb Regional Centre of FINA (Financial Agency) Class: UP-1/110/0713-01/1683, Reg. No:
04-06-13-1683-15 of 22 March 2013, the pre-bankruptcy settlement process for the Company i.e. Hoteli
Jadran, a public limited hotel trade company headquatered in Gradac, Jadranska 2, entity reg. No (MBS)
060040135, tax id. No (OIB):18099276986, was opened. A voting hearing regarding the Financial
Restructuring Plan for the Company was held on 6 June 2018, at which the required majority was reached
to adopt the Plan, and the Ruling approving the Financial Restructuring Plan was adopted. It is expected
that the pre-bankruptcy settlement arrangement based on the financial and operational restructuring plan
would create preprequisites to eliminate the uncertainty regarding the Company's ability to continue as a

going concern. Our opinion has not been modified on this issue.

These financial statements do not include any adjustments to the recoverable amounts of assets and
liabilities, or reclassification of the assets and liabilities that would otherwise be required if the Company

were no longer able to continue as a going concern.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTEL! JADRAN d.d., Gradac

2  ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(IFRSs)

First-time adoption of amendments to existing standards effective for the current reporting period

The following amendments to the existing standards and new interpretations issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the European Union are effective for the current

period:

« IFRS 16 “Leases”, adopted by the European Union on 31 October 2017 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.).

o Amendments to IFRS 9 "Financial instruments”, adopted by the European Union on 22 November

2018 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020);

e Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” — Plan Amendment, Curtailiment or Settlement,
adopted by the European Union on 13 March 2019 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020),

o Amendments to IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” — Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures — adopted by the European Union on 08 February 2019 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020),

e« Amendments to various Standards “Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle”,
resulting from the IFRS annual improvement project (IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and 1AS 23), primarily
with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording — adopted by the European Union on 14
March 2019 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020),

e IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments” — adopted by the EU on 23 October 2018

(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020).

The adoption of the amended Standards and the Interpretation has not lead to any material changes in the

financial statements of the Company.

Amendments to the existing standards issued by IASB and adopted by the European Union, but not

yet effective
At the date of approval of these financial statements, there are no new Standards and amendments to

Standards issued by the IASB and adopted by the European Union, which are not yet in force.

New standards and amendments to the current standards issued by the IASB, but not yet adopted

by the European Union

IFRSs currently adopted by the EU do not differ significantly from the official pronouncements of the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), except for the following Standards, amendments to the
existing Standards and Interpretations, not yet endorsed by the EU {the effective dates below apply to

IFRSs as a whole):
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

2  ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

New standards and amendments to the current standards issued by the IASB, but not yet adopted

by the European Union (continued)

. IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016) — The EC has decided not to launch the endorsement process of the interim standard and to

wait for the final Standard,

. IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021),
° Amendments to IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” — Definition of a Business (effective for

business acquisitions on or after the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and

asset acquisitions effective at the beginning of that period and thereafter),

. Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial instruments", IAS 39 "“Financial instruments™:
Recognition and measurement “and IFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” - — Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 )

. Amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in

Associates and Joint Ventures” — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture and further amendments (effective date has been deferred indefinitely until the research
project on the equity method has been concluded).

. Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” and IAS 8 “Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” — Definition of Material (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020),

) Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards (effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020).

As assessed by the Company, the adoption of the new Standards and the amendments to the existing
Standards would not have a material impact on its financial statements. Applying hedge accounting to a

portfolio of financial assets and liabilities the principles of which have not been endorsed by the EU remains

unregulated.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTEL! JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1.Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Accounting Act and International

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as determined by the European Commission and published in the
Official Journal of the European Union. The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost. The
accounting policies have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise. The financial statements have

been prepared under the going-concern assumption.

Company prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS for the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”).In consolidated financial statements, subsidiaries — which present all companies
in which Group, directly or indirectly, has more than half of the voting rights or has control over the
operations — are completely consolidated. Users of these unconsolidated financial statements should read
them together with the consolidated financial statements of the Group on 31 December 2020, for the year
that ended in order to obtain complete information about financial position of the Group, results of

operations and changes in the financial position of the Group in whole.

3.2.Consolidation

Consolidated financial statements includes financial statements of the Company and its subsidaries

(together ,Group*), together with the Group's shares in subsidaries.

Business Combinations
The Group applies IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” for accounting business combinations. Accounting

policies applied in these acquisitions are described below .

Business combinations are applying with the acquisition method on acquisition date, on day when the

Group acquired control.

The Group controls another entity when it is exposed or when it is entitled to a variable return from
participation in the entity, and its power over the entity has the potential to affect the yield. The Group re-
evaluates whether it has control when one or more control elements change. This includes circumstances in
which the Group's protection rights (for example, those arising from lending activities) become significant

and lead to the Group having power over the entity.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

- fair value of the consideration transferred; increased by

- recognized amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, increased by,

- if the acquisition is realized in parts, the fair value of the existing ownership share in the acquired company;

-reduced by
- net amount recognized (generally fair value) of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2.Consolidation (continued)

If the sum represents a negative value, the gain arising from the bargain purchase is recognized

immediately in profit or loss.

Transferred fee does not include amounts relating to the settlement of previous business relationships.

Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Acquisition-related costs, other than those related to the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group

incurs in connection with a business combination are recognized as an expense when incurred.

Any contingent consideration is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. If a contingent consideration
is classified as equity, it is not revaluated and its settlement is recognized within equity. In other cases,

subsequent changes in the fair value of the potential charge are recognized in profit or loss.

3.3.Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidaries are companies in which the Company has control, power to manage with financial and
business policies by participating in making decision about financial and business policies in subsidiary.
Control is achieved if:

« Company has supremacy, power of disposition in subject:

e Company is exposed or has rights on a variable return based on its participation in that

entity, and

« with his supremacy, power of disposition can influence on entity”s yield

Company re-evaluates whether it has control or if the facts and circumstances indicate that one or more

than three control elements has changed.

Financial information about the investments in the subsidiaries is provided below:

Registered (Accumulated

Profit/(Loss) losses)/ Total
Total a5sets (::ai::} for 2018 Retained equity
P profit

Subsidiary
- HOTEL LABINECA 29,621,135 1,709,200 2,054,181 6323712 10,087,093
d.o.o., Gradac
-JADRAN LAGUNA
oo, Gradac 12,485,042 345000  (2,429,330) (690,508)  (2,774,838)
Zr';Aa':JAON do.o, 6,685,709 3500100  (1,238,976)  (6,034,054)  (3,772,930)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.4.Reporting currency

Financial statements are presented in Croatian kunas. At 31 December 2020 the exchange rate for EUR 1
and USD 1 was HRK 7.536898 and HRK 6.139039 respectively (at 31.12.2019: EUR 1 = HRK 7.442580
and USD 1 = HRK 6.649911).

3.5.Foreign currencies

In these financial statements, transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the
Company’s functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are included in profit or loss for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period as financial expenses, except
for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items available for sale in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is also recognised directly in equity.

3.6.0perating segments
For management reporting purposes, the Company has been identified as a single operation and all the

activities of the Group are considered to constitute a single operating segment.

3.7.Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated

useful life of an asset at the following annual rates:

2020 2019
Buildings 2.80% 2.80%
Plant and equipment 10.00%-20.00% 10.00%-20.00%
Furniture, tools and other equipment 10.00%-50.00% 10.00%-50.00%
Investment property 2.80% 2.80%
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7.Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The initial cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to its

working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after property, plant and equipment have been put into use, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhaul costs, is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as expense in the period in

which it is incurred.

In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment
beyond its originally assessed standard performance, the expenditures are capitalised as an additional cost
of property, plant and equipment. Costs eligible for capitalization include costs of periodic, planned
significant inspections and overhauls necessary for further operation.

Equipment is capitalized when its useful life is greater than one year, and its individual cost is greater than
HRK 3.5 thousand. Tools are capitalized regardless of their unit cost. Property, plant and equipment are
derecognised from the financial statements when they are disposed of or when no further benefits from their

continuing use or disposal are expected.

Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment are credited directly to income. The net book value of

retired property, plant and equipment is included in expenses.

An increase in the carrying amount on the remeasurement of an asset is credited to the revaluation reserve.
Reversal of any previously recognized surplus on revaluation is presented as a deduction of the revaluation

reserve, whereas any other decreases are charged to profit or loss.

3.8.Intangible assets

Intangible assets are purchased separately and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful life of an asset. The useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at each year-end, with any

effect of changes in estimates being accounted for prospectively.

3.9.Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition, and the sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of the classification. Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10.Leases

IFRS 16 “Leases" introduces a new definition of leases and confirms current difference between two types

of leases (operating and financial) with respect to the accounting treatment to be applied by the lessor.

The accounting treatment applied by lessees implies the same treatment for all types of leases, namely the
recognition of assets, which represents the right to use which represents the right to use the assets and in

the same time liability for future payments under the lease agreement.

In initial recognition, these assets are measured based on the cash flows of the lease. Upon initial
recognition, right of use is valued in accordance with Standards under IAS 16, IAS 38 or IAS 40 and
therefore applying the cost model (decreased for accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses), the revaluation model or the fair value model.

In order to calculate the lease obligation and the associated property with the right of use, discounting of
future lease payments is carried out at an appropriate discount rate. In this regard, future lease payments
that are discounted are determined on the basis of contractual provisions, excluding VAT, as the obligation

to pay such tax arises when the invoice is issued by the lessor and not on the date of commencement of the

lease.

For the execution of the stated calculation, lease payments must be discounted using agreed implicit
interest rate or, if not available, incremental interest rate The incremental interest rate is determined on the
basis of financing costs for liabilities of similar duration and similar security as those in the lease
agreement.In determining the lease term, the period of irrevocability set out in the contract must be taken
into account, during which the lessee is entitled to use the property in question, taking into account potential
renewal options, if the lessee is reasonably certain that he will renew. In particular, in relation to those
contracts that allow the lessee to tacitly renew the lease after the first set of years, the lease term is
determined taking into account factors such as the length of the first period, the existence of plans to

release the leased property and all other circumstances indicating reasonable security recovery.

3.11.Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment of non-financial assets that have an indefinite useful time,and is not depreciated is reviewed

annually. Depreciated asset is reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount may not be recovarable.

An impairment loss is recognized as the difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount of
asset. Recoverable amount is fair value reduced by the cost of sale or the value of the asset in use,
whichever is higher For the purpose of impairment test, asset is grouped at the lowest levels in order to

identify related cash flow. Non-financial assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each

reporting date.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12.Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: ‘hold and collect’ business
model! and 'hold to collect and sell' business model. Classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial asset was acquired and on the risk management related to the acquisition of the asset.
Management classifies financial assets at initial recognition and assesses that classification at each
reporting date. Upon initial recognition, the Management Board allocates financial assets to business
models and accordingly conducts a test of contracted cash flows. Subsequent measurement depends

on the allocation and test of contracted cash flows.
Financial assets held within 'hold and collect’ business model

Financial assets held within 'hold and collect' business model represent non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or definable repayment and assets which are not listed on active market. They
are stated under current assets, except for assets with a maturity of more than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. Such assets are classified as non-current financial assets. Receivables are stated at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Impairment test of these financial assets is performed
based on repayment delays in days. According to ageing receivables report the Management Board

makes a impairment decision based on historical losses and accounts for expected credit losses that

may occur due to non-payment.

Financial assets held within 'hold to collect and sell' business mode/

Financial assets held within 'hold to collect and sell' business model, which are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, are non-derivative assets which are stated in this
category or which are not classified in another category and relate to shares listed on an active
market. Initially, these assets are measured at fair value plus transaction costs. At each subsequent
reporting date, fair value is measured, while investments in securities that are not listed in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably determined are measured at its acquisition costs.
According to IFRS 9, these financial assets are not subject to impairment. The Company has
decided to measure these financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, as it

represents an investment in equity instruments which are not meant for trading.

3.13.Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include all financial liabilities that are not classified at fair value throdgh profit or loss.
Financial liabilities include trade payables, borrowings and other liabilities. They are initially recognized at
fair value decreased by directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The fair value of an
interest-free liability is its discounted repayment amount. If the maturity date of the liability is less than one

year, discounting is omitted.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation is discharged or canceled or expires.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14.Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments include forward contracts and swap contracts (replacement of a variable
interest rate with a fixed one) in a foreign currency. Derivative financial instruments are recognized in the
balance sheet at their fair value. Fair values are determined according to stock market prices or through
pricing models, if such are applicable. All derivatives are recognized in the balance sheet as assets when
their fair value is positive and as a liability when their fair value is negative. These derivatives do not meet
the requirements of hedge accounting and are therefore treated as derivatives held for trading. Gains and
losses arising from a forecast transaction are recognized in profit or loss in the same period in which the

forecast transaction affects profit or loss.

3.15.Inventories

Inventories of raw material and spare parts are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Merchandise on stock is carried at the selling price net of accrued VAT and margin. Small items and tools

are written off when put in use,

3.16.Trade receivables and prepayments
Trade receivables and prepayments are recognised at amounts invoiced in accordance with the underlying
agreement, order, delivery note and other documents serving as the billing basis, reduced by net value

adjustment of uncollectible receivables

Trade receivables are measured initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, reduced by value adjustment, which is applied in accordance with the requrements of

IFRS9.

3.17.Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and demand deposits as well as of other highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or less.

3.18.Share capital and treasury shares
External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, other than on a business combination, are
deducted from equity, net of any related income taxes. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in

equity in the period in which they are declared.

Where the Company or its related companies purchase the Company’s share capital or obtain rights to
purchase its share capital, the consideration paid including any attributable transaction costs net of income
taxes is shown as a deduction from total shareholders’ equity. Gains and losses on sale of own shares are

charged or credited to the share premium/discount account in equity.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.19.Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as liability in the financial statements in
the period in which they are approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

3.20.Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit and loss which belongs to the Company's shareholders
with the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

3.21.Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value net of transaction costs. In future periods, borrowings are
stated at amortized cost; any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of the

borrowings, using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the loan contracting are recognized as transaction costs of the loan fo the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the loan to be withdrawn. In that case, the fee is deferred until withdrawal. If
there is no evidence that part or all of the loan is likely to be withdrawn, the fee is capitalized as an advance

payment for liquidity services and amortized over the life of the loan to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer

settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

3.22.Trade payables

Trade payables are amount related to purchased goods and services in the ordinary cours of
business. If payment is expected in one year, payables are recognized as current liabilities,
otherwise they are recognized as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are initially recognized at fair value and are disclosed at amortized cost in future

periods using the effective interest method.

3.23.Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax
The current tax liability is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from the net profit for a

period reported in the statement of profit or loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the balance sheet

date.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.23.Taxation (continued)

Deferred taxes
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation

of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. No such assets and liabilities are recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced fo the extent

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the

reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilites and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred taxes for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity, or
where they arise from the initial accounting for a business combination. In the case of a business
combination, the tax effect is taken into account in calculating goodwill or in determining the excess of the
acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities

over cost.

3.24.Maintenance and repairs

Cost of maintenance and repairs is recognised when incurred, except when expenditure incurred extends
the useful life of an asset and changes the capacity or purpose of property, plant and equipment. Such
expenditure is treated as improvement and is added to the carrying amount of tangible assets.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.25.Retirement benefit costs

The Company provides long-service and retirement benefits to its employees, in accordance with the
underlying union agreement between the workers and the Company as their employer. The termination
benefit is a one-off benefit in the amount of HRK 8,000. The employees are entitled to long-service benefits

(jubilee awards), which are paid in accordance with the Personal Income Tax Act.

3.26.Provisions

Provisions are recognized only when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resuit
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of
discounting is material, the amount of the provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation, determined using the estimated risk-free interest rate as the discount rate.

Where discounting is used, the reversal of such discounting in each year is recognized as interest expense.

3.27.Revenue recognition

Revenue consist of the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for services sold in hotels,
camps and restaurants during the company's ordinary course of business. Revenues are recognized in

amounts net of value added tax.

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, when the
Company will have future economic benefits and when the specific criteria for all the activities of the

Company described below are fulfilled.

Service revenue

Revenues from completed hotel and turist sevices are recognized in the period in which the services are
completed. Revenue from services rendered to individual guests paying by credit card - Credit card fees

are recognized as a reduction of revenue.

Rental income
Revenue from rental services is recognized in the period in which the services are rendered, using the

straight-line method over the term of the contract with the lessors.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.27.Revenue recognition {continued)

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method. When the
value of a receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the receivable to its
recoverable amount, which is the estimated value of expected cash inflows discounted at the
instrument's original effective interest rate. The steady abolition of discounts in future periods is
recognized as interest income. Interest income on loans whose collection is questionable is recognized

using the original effective interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

3.28.Critical accounting estimates and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In applying the accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors

that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the

period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

3.29. Correction of an accounting error

During the year, the Management Board of the Company analyzed the valuation of assets and liabilities and

concluded that there was an error in the presentation of assets in the previous period.
On January 1, 2020, a correction was made as follows:

Impairment of trade receivables (27,017,841)
Reduction of retained earnings (27,017,841)
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4 GOODS AND SERVICE SALES

Rental income — related companies
Rental income — others

Domestic service sales

Goods sales

2020 2019
584,000 7,252,000
285,148 280,774

85,988 9,882
80,992 166,222
1,036,129 7,708,877

The Company leased out the hotels FARAON, Trpanj, LABINECA, Gradac and LAGUNA, Gradac, to its

subsidiaries engaged in hotel trade. The same confracts were terminated by the company on January 1, 2021.

5 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Revenue from state aid
Other operating income

2020 2019

210,199 -
29,615 -

239,814 -
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6 COST OF MATERIAL
2020 2019
Raw material, supplies and energy
Raw material and supplies 87,151 73,355
Small inventories and protective clothing 5,563 1,035
Energy - 66,370
92,714 140,760
Cost of goods sold - 9,882
External services
intellectual and personal services 621,444 1,122,623
Transport, telephone, postage 140,765 147,746
Maintenance and repairs 89,967 72,116
Municipal utility services 4,933 1,760
Other 33,990 67,591
891,099 1,411,836
983,813 1,562,478

The costs of professional attorneys', tax and business consultants’ fees amount to HRK 532,740 (2019: HRK
1,004,500).

7 SALARIES AND OTHER STAFF COSTS

2020 2019

Net salaries 1,170,985 977,651
Taxes and contributions from salaries 505,833 478,191
Taxes and contributions on salaries 171,066 155,122
1,847,884 1,610,964

At 31 December 2020 HOTELI JADRAN d.d. had 71 employees (31 December 2019: 5 employees).

8 DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is stated in the Statement of Comprehensive Profit for 2020 in the amount of HRK 4,484,510
(2019: HRK 4,523,066) and is calculated at the rates stated in Note 3.7. in addition to the financial statements.
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9 OTHER EXPENSES

Insurance and security

Per diems and travel costs

Reimbursement of expenses, gifts and grants
Contributions, membership fees, taxes

Bank charges

Other expenses

10  PROVISIONS

2020 2019
209,089 246,787
82,533 42,793
37,202 29,495
22,522 43,365
4,091 3,261
1,455 2,916
356,892 368,617

Provisions stated in the Statement of Comprehensive Profit for 2020 in the amount of HRK 30,390,582 (2019:
HRK 0) relate to provisions for ongoing litigation and for which, according to the Management Board, there is a

probable possibility of ending the dispute in 2021. Years.

11 NET FINANCIAL (EXPENSE)/INCOME

Financial income

Interest income — related companies
Interest income - others
Realized exchange rate gains

Total financial income
Financial expenses
Interest expense

Realized exchange rate loss
Value adjustments of financial assets /i/

Total financial expense

Net financial (expense) / income

2020 2019

1,234 6,102
10,040 3,320

2 -

11,276 9,422
(2,418) (17,204)
(238) -
(5,554,300) -
(5,556,956) (17,204)
(5,545,680) (7,782)

/il Value adjustments of financial assets stated in the Statement of comprehensive income for 2020 in the
amount of HRK 5,554,300 (2019 HRK 0) refer to the adjustment of shares in subsidiaries after the

financial asset impairment test.
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12 INCOME TAX

Income tax is determined in accordance with Croatian regulations. The tax rate applied to taxable profit for the

year is 12% (2019: 18%).

ltem

o 2020 2019
1 (Loss) as the difference between income and expenses (42,352,859) (5652,209)
2 Expenses not recognised for tax purposes 35,957,595 195,951
3 Tax deductible expenses (210,199) -
4 (Loss)/Profit after increases/(decreases) (6,605,463) (356,258)
5 Tax losses brought forward (549,711) (193,453)
6 Tax base - -
7 Tax rate 12% 18%
8 Tax expense - -
9 Loss for future transfer (7,155,174) (549,711)

Unused deferred tax loss as at 31 December 2020 amounts to HRK 7,155,174 (2019: HRK 549,711).

The availability of the tax losses carried forward expires after five years as follows:

Year Amount
2021 -
2022 -
2023 193,453
2024 356,258
2025 6,605,463

7,155,174

Deferred tax assets are recognized as a transferred tax loss only in the amount that is likely to result in a
related tax relief. Benefits of tax losses are not recognized in the financial statements due to the uncertainty of

achieving the conditions for their future use.

Pursuant to the applicable regulations of the Republic of Croatia, the Tax Administration may, at any time,
inspect the Company’s books and records for the year for which the tax liability is declared. The Management

Board of the Company is not aware of any circumstances that could give rise to a potential material tax liability

in this respect.

13 LOSS PER SHARE

For the purposes of calculating earnings per share, earnings represent net income after taxation. The number
of ordinary shares is 107,115 in both amounts and the weighted number of shares (31.12.2019: 107,115
average number of ordinary shares and weighted number of shares). Loss per share in 2020 amounted to HRK

395.40 per share (2019: HRK 5.15 per share).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HOTELI! JADRAN d.d., Gradac

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, the Company reclassified within items of property, plant and equipment by ceasing to
recognize investments in real estate, and reclassified them as own property due to the termination of long-term
leases.

A lien has been entered on the debit of real estate, according to provisions, received loans and issued
guarantees (Notes 23, 24 and 30).

The Company's Management Board estimates that, as at 31 December 2020, there are no indications that the
market value of property, plant and equipment is lower than the book value, there have been no significant
changes in technological, economic or legal conditions that would have a significant impact on value of assets,
so taking into account the fact of a high degree of write-off of buildings there is no basis for reducing their book
value.

15  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

2020 2019
Opening net book value at 1 January - 5,654,300
Closing net book value at 31 December - 5,554,300
HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac, is the owner of the following subsidiaries
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Ownership Ownership
interest in interest in
% Amount % Amount
Name of subsidiary
HOTEL LABINECA d.o.0., Gradac 100 0 100 1,709,200
JADRAN LAGUNA d.o0.0., Gradac 100 0 100 345,000
FARAON d.o.0., Trpanj 100 0 100 3,500,100

With the impairment test, the Company reduced its investments in subsidiaries to fair value as at 31 December

2020.

16  NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL RECEIVABLES

Principal Interest 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Approved rate applied
Jelsa d.d., Jelsa 154.033 HRK 3.96% 154,033 154,033
Loans given to employees 18,515 HRK 2% 18,515 23,700
Interes 24,018 18,750
196,566 196,483

The Company has receivables ie claims in the amount of HRK 154,033, the repayment of which has been
defined in the pre-bankruptcy settliement procedure to take place on a one-off basis until 2026 at the latest. The

contracted amount is calculated at the applicable rate of contractual interest on loans between related

companies once a year.
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17 TRADE RECEIVABLES

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Receivables from related companies 28,040,712 28,219,061
Domestic trade receivables 42,550 36,559
Correction of receivables from related customers (27,057,614) (27,057,614)
1,025,648 1,198,006
Changes in value adjustments to customer receivables are as follows:
2020 2019
Balance at 1 January 27,057,614 39,772
Additions - 27,017,842
Balance at 31 December 27,057,614 27,057,614
The age structure of customer receivables is presented in the following table:
Past due
From 90
Up to 30 From 31to Over 365
Total Not yet due days 90 days tc:l 365 days
ays
31.12.2020 1,025,648 34,451 15,034 18,270 956,953 940
18 OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLES
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Due from the state 717,804 628,522
Prepayments made 2,512 2,919
736,420 631,441

The amount due from the state consists mainly of VAT refund and overpaid corporate income tax.

19  CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

2020 2019

Given loans 128,859 126,250
Interest 7,549 3,014
136,408 129,264

Company approved a short-term loan of up to one year with an interest rate of 3.42% annualy.
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current account balance
Foreign currency account balance
Cash in hand

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
165,652 950,890

- 403

- 604

165,652 951,897

Cash equivalents comprise cheques and deposits with banks, which are available at call (ie deposits placed for

a term of up to 3 months).

The Company's account is opened at Privredna banka Zagreb d.d., Zagreb.

21 SHARE CAPITAL

Sh'are Capital Total

capital gains
Balance at 1 January 2019 74,980,500 173,442 75,153,942
Balance at 31 December 2019 74,980,500 173,442 75,153,942
Balance at 31 December 2020 74,980,500 173,442 75,153,942

The Company's share capital amounts to HRK 74,980,500.00. The total number of ordinary shares in issue at
the year-end was 107,115 (31 December 2019 107,115 shares), with a nominal value of HRK 700.00 each

(2019: HRK 700.00).

The ownership structure at the balance sheet was as follows:

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Number of Number of o

Shareholder shares % shares %o
Topaz d.o.o., Zagreb 92,717 86.56 92,717 86.56
Centar za restrukturiranje i prodaju (CERP), 841 0.79 2434 233
Republic of Croatia ) ’ )
Other shareholders (total) 13,557 12.66 11,964 11.11

107,115 100 107,115 100
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22 RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED LOSSES

According to the Decision of the General Assembly of August 6, 2020, the operating loss for 2019 in the
amount of HRK 552,209 will be covered from retained earnings. The Management Board made a decision to
correct the accounting error from the previous period at the expense of retained earnings, ie transferred loss.
Also, the coverage of the part of the transferred loss created by recording the accounting error from the
previous period is covered by other reserves of the Company and partly from the legal reserves of the

Company. The total effect of the correction of an accounting error is presented in Note 3.29. in addition to the

financial statements.

23  PROVISIONS

During 2021, the Company expects the completion of enforcement proceedings against real estate owned by
the Company as a debtor in the proceedings, and based on the enforcement document - Agreement to secure
a monetary claim by establishing a lien, stated the cost of provisions in the amount of market value of real

estate determined by an independent appraiser.

The Company, as a guarantor-payer in the enforcement proceedings over free cash, also stated provisions in

the amount of the present value of future outflows of free cash of the Company.

In accordance with the above, the Management Board of the Company made a decision to disclose provisions

in the amount of HRK 30,390,582.

24 OBLIGATIONS TOWARDS ENTREPRENEURS WITHIN THE GROUP

Principal Applied 31.12.2020 31.12.2019
approved interest rate
Short-term borrowings
Hotel Labineca d.o.0., Gradac 3,734,518 HRK 3,734,518 3,734,518
Jadran Laguna d.o.0., Gradac 3,734,518 HRK 3,734,518 3,734,518
TOTAL BORROWINGS 7,469,036 7,469,036

Under the Claims Purchase Agreement No02-85/2017, Privredna banka d.d., Zagreb sold its claims from Hoteli
Jadran d.d., Gradac, comprising principal in the total amount of HRK 4,822,744 and late-payment interest in
the total amount of HRK 2,571,388, to its related companies Hotel Labineca d.o.0., Gradac and Jadran Laguna

d.o.0., Gradac, each taking on 50 percent of the principal and late-payment interest claims.

The borrowings are secured by lien on property (see Note 14).

52



Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

25 LIABILITIES FOR GIVEN LOANS

Odobrena
glavnica
Kratkoroéni krediti
Ministry of finance, Croatia
Marina Kremik d.o.o. 905.817 HRK
Dalmacia Holiday d.o.o. 618.822 HRK

Interest — related companies

UKUPNO KREDITI

Primijenjene
kamatne stope

2,5%
7%

31.12.2020. 31.12.2019,
1,643,909 1,643,909
905,817 -
6,833 6,833
73,344 71,695
2,629,903 1,722,437

On 3 August 2011 the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Croatia adopted a Resolution on the
Reprogramming of the Tax Debt of Hoteli Jadran d.d., Gradac, which amounted to HRK 3,343,350.70 at 31
December 2010. The loan repayment period is 30 months, and the loan interest rate is 8.30 percent annually.
At 31 December 2019, the tax debt amounts to HRK 1,643,909 and is confirmed in the pre-bankruptcy
settiement procedure by Finacial Agency (FINA), Regional Center Zagreb on 6 June 2018 (Note 1). The debt in

question is regulated by a pre-bankruptcy settlement, which is yet to be confirmed by Commercial Court.

A short-term one-year loan was obtained from Dalmacia Holiday d.o.0., Zagreb, for liquidity purposes. The loan

interest rate is 7.00 percent annually. The loan balance at 31 December 2020 amounts to HRK 6,833.

26 TRADE PAYABLES

Domestic trade payables

Trade payables — related companies
Foreign trade payables

Late-payment interest on trade payables

27  LIABILITIES TOWARDS EMPLOYEES

Liabilities for net salaries and benefits

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
4,119,988 3,519,547
5,472 513,007
4,522 3,348
975,877 975,877
5,105,859 5,011,779
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
337,848 84,499
337,848 84,499
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28  LIABILITIES FOR TAXES, CONTRIBUTIONS AND SIMILAR BENEFITS

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Value added tax liabilities 133,464 133,464
Payroll taxes and contributions from salary 106,406 29,559
Contributions on salary 64,029 2,508
Corporate income tax 3,676 3,676
Obligations for membership fees and other fees 1,212,283 1,226,171
1,519,858 1,395,378

29 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For financial reporting purposes, parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the
other party, if the parties are under joint control, or if a party may exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions. In considering each potential relationship between related

parties, the focus is on the substance of the relationship rather than merely the legal form.

Given .
loans Borrowing
Trade Trade s and Expense
. and . Income
receivables payables interest s
advance
& payable

Parent:
Topaz d.o.o. 393 B ) i B 393
Subsidiaries:
FARAON d.o.0.,
Trpan] 55,571 - - - 68,327 9,477
HOTEL LABINECA
d.0.0., Gradac 840,991 - - 3,734,518 56,116 626,000
JADRAN LAGUNA
d.o.0. Gradac 86,145 5,472 - 3,734,518 49,324 29,431
Management
Board - - - - 997,784 -
Balance at 31
December 2020 983,099 5,472 - 7,469,036 1,171,551 665,301
Balance at 31
December 2019 28,198,039 5,472 154,033 8,055,099 2,316,711 7,361,229

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS

a) Contingent liabilities

Legal actions. As of December 31, 2020, there have been several lawsuits regarding property rights, real
estate, and business relationships in which the Company is a defendant. The lawsuits relate to unresolved

assets, determination of property rights, payment of the Company and the Company as a guarantor.
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The Company issued a guarantee in favor of Dalmacia Holiday kft in the amount of EUR 21,524,970.87,
increased by interest, fees, expenses, commissions and other costs for the Raiffeisen Bank loan. By the
contract on the purchase and sale of receivables dated April 2, 2019 concluded between Raiffeiseisen Bank

Zrt. and Bohemian Financing Zrt., all rights and obligations have been transferred to the new creditor,

Bohemian Financing Zrt.

The company has issued a guarantee in favor of Habito d.o.o. in the amount of EUR 2,625,000 increased by
interest, fees, costs, commissions and other costs, pursuant to Annex | of the Agreement on financial leasing of
real estate. Contract on purchase and sale of receivables dated May 30, 2018 concluded between Optima
Leasing d.0.0. and Bohemian Financing Zrt., all rights and obligations have been transferred to the new

creditor Bohemian Financing Zrt.

b) Contingent assets

Legal actions. At 31 December 2020 there were several legal actions filed by the Company on the grounds of

ownership title and enforcement.

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

This note provides details of the Company's exposure to risks and describes the methods used by
management to manage risks. The most significant types of financial risks to which the Company is exposed
are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. Market risk includes exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and price

risk.

Capilal risk management

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the year-end was as follows:

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Debt 10,098,939 9,191,473
Cash and cash equivalents (165,652) (951,897)
Net debt 9,933,287 8,239,576
Equity 21,829,148 91,199,849
Net debt-to-equity ratio 45.50% 9.03%

Debt is defined as a liability for long-term and short-term loans. The principal includes all capital and all

reserves.
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Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Cash and cash equivalents 165,652 951,897
Trade receivables 1,025,648 1,198,006
Given loans 332,974 303,983
Other receivables 720,317 653,205
2,244,591 3,107,091

Financial liabilities
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Loans and borrowings 10,098,939 9,191,473
10,098,939 9,191,473

Foreign currency risk management

The Company is exposed to no foreign currency risk. The transactions are performed in Croatian kunas.

Interest rate risk management

The Company's operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that the interest-
bearing assets and liabilities mature or reprice at different times or in differing amounts. Variable-interest
bearing assets and liabilities of the Company are also exposed to the basis risk, which is the difference in re-

pricing characteristics of the various floating rate indices.

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk arising from variable rates, as disclosed in Notes 24 and 25.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Management Board, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity requirements. The Company manages its liquidity using appropriate bank
overdrafts and facilities and by matching the maturities of its financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities subject to standard terms and conditions and traded
on active liquid markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices;

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis

using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments;
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o the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not
available, discounted cash flow analysis is applied using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives; and

o the fair value of financial guarantee contracts is determined using option pricing models where the main
assumptions are the probability of default by the counterparty extrapolated from market-based credit

information and the amount of the loss given default.

32 ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

It is the policy of the Company to ensure an on-going environmental awareness among its employees as well

as their commitment to protecting and improving the natural as well as their work environment

33 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The most significant event this year is the appearance of the COVID-19 virus at the end of February 2020. In
accordance with the new circumstances and government measures, the company, as a lessor due to these
exceptional circumstances and uncertainties, agreed to suspend lease agreements for the hotel "Faraon" and
hotel ' "Laguna” since the hotels will not operate in 2020. The company actively monitors all information related
to the spread of coronavirus, especially in emitting markets and takes all protection measures recommended
by the Ministry of Health and the Institute of Public Health. The company, in cooperation with the social
partners, regulated the material rights during the time when it is not working, and it started negotiations with
other partners in order to revise the amount and compensation for the period when the operational activity will
be absent. In April, the Government of the Republic of Croatia announced a state aid program to combat the
negative effects of Covid-19 on the economy. As part of the program, the Company applied for employment
protection measures and received support for job preservation. In addition to the above measure, the Company
has approved a measure of deferral of payment of certain tax liabilities. After the Management Board reviewed
the current operations, the process of streamlining the company's operations was initiated, so that the company
with a long tradition of hotel business dating back to 1955 could face the challenges of the current pandemic in
the most efficient way. Due to difficult and uncertain business conditions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic
and the poor results of the tourist season, the Company decided to manage costs in a centralized manner. The
company expects that this will enable cost reduction, more efficient staff mobility that corresponds to the
current very volatile demand for accommodation capacities and an increase in the quality of service. The
process of rationalization began with the takeover of employees of the companies that leased the hotels

Labineca and Laguna in Gradac and Faraon in Trpanj, and later with the termination of the lease agreement

with the current tenants.
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34 APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were adopted and authorised for issue by the members of the Management Board of

Hoteli Jadran d.d., Gradac, on 15 April 2021.

e

Cecilia Nikoletta Fata Soma Zoltan Dala
President of the Management Board Member of the Management Board
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BALANCE SHEET
balance as at 31,12,2020

] RECENABLES (ADP
1 Receivables from undentakings

2 Recaivables from companies linked by virtue of participating intarest

3 Customer raceivablag

4 Raceivables from emplayaes and members af the undertaking

SR from and other institutions

€ Othet receivables
i SHORT.TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS (ADP 054 fo’ 062) .

1 investments it holqus (shares) of mdennkmm within the group

2 investments in other securities of undom:kmqa within the group

3 Loans, deposits, etc to undertakings within the group

4 investments in holdings (shares) of campanies finked by virtue of
partcipating intsrast

5§ investment in ather secwrities of companies linkad by vitue of
participating interest

6 Loons, deposts otc. given to companies knked by virtue of
participating inferest

7 investments in securities

8 Loant, deposms elc. given

9 Other financial assats
v CASH AT BANK AND N HAND

A} -CAPITAL AND RESERVES {ADP 088 io
1 INITIAL (8UBSCRIBED) CAPITAL
il CAPITAL RESERVES
Al RESERVES FROM PROFIT (ADP 071+072-07340744075)
1 Legal reserves
2 Reserves for treasury shates
3 Treasury shares and holdings (daductble item}
4 Statutory reserves
5 Other resarves
1V REVALUATION RESERVES
VFAIRY ALUE RESERVES (ADP 676

oe0
051
052
054

086
088

(134

049

a8y ]

ey

0
628
1 Research and develapment 004 [ 0
2 Concessions, patents, icences. rademarks, sofware and other 0 P
nghts 005
3 Goodwili 008 0 0|
4 Advance payments for purchase of intangible assets 007 [ Q
5 intangible assets in preparation 008 ] ¢
8 Other intangible asgats 008 0 0
1t TANGIBLE ASSETS (ADP 011 t0 018) oo 71.220.043 86.772.532
v tend 011 6766248 6.766.248
2 Buitdings. 012 0 $9.601.827
3 Plant and aquipment 013 275387 225182
4 Tools, warking nvemory and hnnspomhon assa:s (m 4 678 12,185
§ Biological assats 015 ) Ry 0
8 Advance payments for purchnu of tanmb!o assen og; . 0 0
7 Tangible assets in preparation oz 120.080 187.060
8 Other tangible assets 018 ] 0
9 investment property o1h 64.043 650 e
1 FIXED FINANCIAL ASBETS (ADP 021 10 036) 020 . 8732033 198568
1 investments in holdings (shates) of undentakings within the group [ira] 5.554.300 bl
2 lnvestments i other securities of mdennkmas within the group 022 @ ]
3 Loans, deposits, ate. to undertakings within the group 023 154 033 3
4 investments in holdings (shares) of companies nked by virtue of 024 o 0
panicipating merest
S investment in other securtties of companies finked by virtue of 025 0 0
participating interagt
8 Loant, deposits etc. given to companies linked by virtue of o o
participatiog interest
7 Investments in securities 0
8Loans, deposits, etc. given ) ) 23.700 196.5668
§ Other investments accounted K the squity method 0 .0
10 Other foxad finoncial assets o )
]
" {'Receivables from und knqs 0
2 Recsivables fram compsnies | o o
interasts
3 Customer teceivablas 0 4
4 Other roceivables 0 0
V Deferred tax assets 1] 0
C} CURRENT ASSETS {ADP 0380046'053‘063) 29.028.449; 2.368.460
1 INVENTORIES (ADP 036 to 045) ] 318 435
1 Raw materials 039 [ 318 435
2 Work i progeess 040 Y [
3 Finighed goods 041 0 0
4 Merchandise 042 0
5 Advance payments for inventories o
6 Fixed assets heid for sale Q
7 Elu!og-cd assets

126.250
0

[
"951.697

1 Fair value of financial assets available for sale
2 Cash fiow Mdgc anecwe po
3 Hodge of & not inves! na (omon operation - effective porbon
VI RETAINED' PROFITORLOSS EROUGHT FDRWARO {ADP 08
083y o

1 Rclmdpmm o
2 Loss brought forward
VIl PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE BUS'NESS YEAR (ADP 0854)86)
1 Prof for the business year

2 Loss {or the business year

VHEMINORITY (NON- -CONTROLLING) INTERESY

B} PROVISIONS (ADP 088 10 094}

1 Provisions for pensions, termination benefts and simitar oblipations.

2 Pravigions fot tax Habiites

3 Provisions for ouaoma quu cases

4 Provisions for rénewal of natural resources

5 Provisions for warranty obbgnuom

6 Othet provisions

<) LONG-TERM LlABILmE& (AOP 096 to 108) ¢

1 Liabilites townrds tmdonnxmgs wmn the  group

2 me!mn far Ioans deposits, stc. lu compames wmvn the group

[
oes
o087

og0

3 Lisbilities \owards companiss finked by virtue of participating mlerast

088

‘oo oioojeioo

238 ass

SR
30380562

caoooo

) 0
138,408
165,652

16.104

88 35

21,820,148,
74.980 500
173 442

800000
800 000

11.771.935]

42352 359

il
30.390.562|




4 Liabilities for loans. deposits etc of companies linked by virtue of
participating interast

§ Linbilities for loans. deposits etc

6 Linbiities towards banks and other financial institutions

7 Liabilibes for sdvance payments

8 Lisbilties lowards supplers

099

100
101

102

103

D) SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES (ADP.10816131) AR CABTI02AT] a7 6

1 Liabiities towards undmakmn within the group 108 3231.014 2851784

2 Liabiibes for ioans. deposis. alc. to companies within the group 108 » 557 4822724

3 Liabilties towards companiss finked by virtue of panticipating interast 110 0 o

4 Liabilties fof foans, deposits stc of companisg inked by virtus of 111 o o
parbcpabng interest

5 Linbikbes for loans. deposits eic 112 1843809 2629803

6 Luabilties towards banks and othar financial instiutions 13 o [

7 Liabitias for advance paymants 114 [ [

8 Liabitties towards supphers 15 3 5 100.387

8 Liabifties for sacurities 18 0

10 Lisbikties towards employess "y 337.848

11 Taxes, contribuions and similar Habiities 118 1.519.856

12 Liabilties atising fram the share in the resull 119 34698

13 Linbikties arising from fxed assets held for sale 120 { [

14 Other short-term abiities L 1419 308,

E} ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME 11.785 12,009

F) TOTAL < LIABILIYIES {ADP 067+088+065+107+122) 108:930.880} 89/351.862)

G) OFF-BALANCE SHEET TEMS - [} [




STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
for the period 01.01.2020 to 31.12.2020

in HRK

, (ADP o 25 . rrossstl 1275942
1 Income from sales w»th undertaklngs within the group ) ' 7.356.129 - 664.068
2 income from sales (outside group) I A 353.748) 372,060
3 Income from the use of own products, goods and services 128 | ; 0 - 0
4 Other operating income with undertakings within the group 129 | N o .0
5 Other operating mcome (outsude the group) , ‘1‘30', 1 ; 4 - 239.814
11 OPERATING EXPENSES (ADP 132+133+137+141+142+143+146+153) 131 ' 8.253.308 38.083.121
1 Changes in inventories of work in progress and fmshed goods . BT B | .
2 Material costs (ADP 134 to 136) | e se2478] 0 98313
8) Costs of raw material - - 1 134 ~ 140.760] 92.714
by Costs of goods sofd e . : . 135 ‘, B : o 882 0
) Other external costs 136 | 1.411.836 891.099
3 Staff costs (ADP 138 10 140) e 13 | 1B10.964| . 1.847.884
- a) Net salaries and wages 138 - 977651 ~ 1.170.985
b) Tax and contributions from salaries expenses 139 o arsa91| ~ 505.833
¢) Contributions on salaries ' 140 , 155,122 ; - 171 066
4 Depreciation ' 141 4523066 4494510
5Otherexpenses | - | w2 | seset7| 35689
6 Value adjustments (ADP~V144+1,45) e P e 5 : T
) fixed assets other than financial assets R T ol 0
b) current assets other than financial assets - k 1 14 0 0
"7 Provisions’ (ADP 14710 152y o e o148 0l 1 30:390.582
' a) Provisions for pensions, term/natton benef ts and SImllar ob/lgat/ons 147 . 0 0
~ b) Provisions for tax liabilities , 148 0 ... 0
¢) Provisions for ongoing legal cases k - | 14 Co| £ 30.390.582
d) Provisions for renewal of natural resources o 150 0 0
e) Provisions for warranty obl/gat/ons , ‘ ' h 151 O ) 0
) Other provisions “ e R -7 ) , o 0
8 Other operating expenses k o : ] : o ;153’ b ;  ;188 183 8440
WIFINANCIAL INCOME (ADP 15510164) | 484 | 9422| 11276
1 Income from investments in holdings (shares) of undertakmgs wnhm
the group 155 0 0
2 Income from investments in holdings (shares) of companies linked by 156 0 0
virtue of pamcmaung mterest b - o
3 income from other long -term financial investment and loans granted to 157 6.100 0
undertakings within the group '
4 Other interest income from operations with undertakings within the 158 0 1.234
group
5 Exchange rate differences and other financial income from operations | 4 59 o ' 0 S ' 0
with undertakings within the group -
6 Income from other long-term financial investments and loans 160 3.312 0
7 Other interest income 161 8 ©10.040
8 Exchange rate differences and other financial i income |7 162 . 2 2
9 Unrealised gains (income) from financialassets | qe3 ) 0 ]
0 Other francial incora o B T e B = o
IV FINANCIAL EXPENDITURE (ADP 166 to 172) ' : ' 185 17208 7 5556956
1 Interest expenses and similar expenses with undertakings within the U1(’56 D '0 e 0
rou
; 2 gxchange'rate differences and other expenses from operations with 167 o S 0 o T 0
..Undertakings within the group R o , e
3 Interest expenses and similar expenses 168 17.060 2.419
4 Exchange rate differences and other expenses 169 144 237
" 5 Unrealised losses (expenses) from financial assets ‘ 170 0 0
6 Value adiustments of financial assels (nel) e 5 T
7 Other financial expenses ; 172 ' o 7 o




vV SHARE IN PROFIT FROM COMPANIES LINKED BY VIRTUE OF

PARTICIPATING INTEREST

VI_SHARE IN PROFIT FROM JOINT VENTURES

Vil SHARE IN LOSS OF COMPANIES LINKED BY VIRTUE 6

PARTICIPATING INTEREST

VIl SHARE IN LOSS OF JOINT VENTURES

IX TOTAL INCOME (ADP 125+154+173 + 174)

X TOTAL EXPENDITU

XI_PRE-TAX PROFIT OR LOSS (ADP 177-178)
1 Pre-tax profit (ADP 177-178)

_2Pretax loss (ADP 178-177)

173 0
B R
175 0
e st
N 177 7.718.303
ADP 131+165+175 + 176) | 178 8270512 ;
o oS52209) 4238

XIl INCOME TAX

1, 287 218
43 640 077

552,20

X PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (ADP 179:182)
=1 Prof t for the period (ADP 179-182) e

T OR LOSS OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(ADP 187-188)

1 Pre-tax profit from discontinued operatlons

2 Pre-tax loss on dqscontmued operauons '

XV INCOME TAX OF DISCONTINUED OPERATiONS
1 Dtscontmued operahons proﬁt for the penod (ADP 186: -189)
2 Dzscontmued operations !oss for the period (ADP 189-186)

PROFIT OR LOSS (ADP 179+186)
1 Pre-tax profit (ADP 192)

2 Pre-tax loss (ADP 192)

XVII INCOME TAX (ADP 182+189)

. ‘187,“] -

Xvii PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (ADP. 192 -195)

1 Profit for the penod (ADP 192-195)

2 Loss for.the period (ADP 195—192)

XiX PROFIT.OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD. (ADP 2 :
1 Attributable to owners of the parent

193 0
194 of
195 0
196 ol
197 ol

_sale
4F Profi

V. COMPREHENSIVE I}

0

Il OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAX : S5 ol o

(ADP 204 to 211) e e T oo o

1 Exchange rate dnfferences from translatuon of forelgn operatlons ; . 204 o 0

2 Changes in revaluation reserves of fixed tangible and intangible assets 205 0 0

3 Profit or loss arising from re-evaluation of f inancial assets availabie for 206 0 ‘ 0

”st ansmg Trom effeciive cash o hedgmg S ! 207 ,’ e e 0 5

5 Profit or loss arising from effective hedge of a net investmentin a 208 0 0

foreign operation e e ;

6 Share in other comprehenssve incomefloss of companies linked by 209 0 0
virtue of pamc»patmg mterest o 1 o

7 Actuarial gamsllosses on defined remuneravon plans 210 0] 0

8 Other changes in equ:ty unrelated to owners o 211 N o 0

 TAX ON OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD N 212 0 0

IV:NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME OR LOSS (ADP 203-212) 213 0 0

VI COMPREHENSIVE INCO '

216+217) ol R 0
1 Attributable to owners of the parent 216 o) 0
2 Attributable to mmority (non-controllmg) interest 217 0 0




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - indirect method

for the period 01.01.2020 . to 31.12.2020.

1 Pre tax profit

001

-5562.209

-42.352.859

2 Adjustments (ADP 003 to 010): 002 | - 4695387 140.078.528
' ’ a) Depreciation 003 4.523.066 4.494.510
b) Gains and losses from sale and value ad/ustment of fixed tangible 004 0 0
and intangible assets
¢) Gains and losses from sale and unrealised gains and losses and 005 0 5.554.300
value adjustment of financial assets
d) Interest and dividend income 006 -11.274
e) Interest expenses 007 2418
f) Provisions Lo ol 30380582
9) Exchange rate differences (unrealised) BT | . 0
h) Other ad/ustments for non~cash transact/ons and unr 8//86d ga/ns 010 164.681 .352.009
and losses
I-Cash flow increase or .dacrease before changes in the working ' o S s g e
capital (ADP 001+002) : m sfastrel et
3 Changes in the workmg capital (ADP 013 to 016) , 012 =3.776.513} 1.138.773
a) Increase or decrease in short-term liabilities 013 -64.152| 1.378.262
b) Increase or decrease i in short term rece/vables 014 , ,-3,.7,39.02‘8’ 78 946
¢) /ncrease or decrease in /nventones :'0145‘ , k - o ... —318 435
d) Other increase or decrease in the working capital 016 26.667 0
II Cash from operations (ADP. 011+012) 017 366. 665 41,135,558
4 interest paid 018 0 0
5 Income tax pald - 019 -42.987 0
A) NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (ADP 017 to 019) 020 323.678 -1.135.558

1 Cash receipts from sales of fixed tangible and intangible assets

borrowmgs and debt fnancuaI Instruments e

021 0

2 Cash receipts from sales of financial instruments | g2 | oL 0

3 Interest received L 298 oz

4T Dividends recelved 024 o 0

5 Cash receipts from repayment of loans and deposits .25 L29mry 0

6 Other cash receIpts from Investment actnvmes 026 o 0

il Total cash receipts from investment activities (ADP 021to 026) 027 3 2751 117

1 Cash payments for the purchase of fixed tanglbIe and mtang|ble assets 028 -318.635 -47.000

2 Cash payments for the acquisition of financial lnstrumentsw | 029 | - 0

3 Cash payments for loans and deposuts for the period o 030 | 0

4 Acqutsmon of a subs:da t of cash acqmred - - 031 0

5 Other cash payments from investment activities @32 o 0

IV TotaI cash ‘payments from investment actlvities (ADP 028 to 032) 033 - 468585 -47.000

B) NET CASH FLOW. FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES (ADP 027 +033) 034 -465.310 -46.883

o o

2 Cash receipts from the |ssue of equnty f nancuaI mstruments and debt 036 0 0
financial instruments

3 Cash recelpts from credit prmcxpals loans and_other borrowmgs ' ‘0' k ] 'V 9,0‘5.18,1“,7,

4 Other cash recespts from fi nancmg actavmes o 0 0

V Total cash receipts from ﬂnan‘ ing actIvI les (ADP 035 to 038) | o3 o - 905.817

1 Cash| payments for the repayment of cr incipals, loans and other 040 -509.856




2 Dividends paid

041 9 0

3 Cash pay‘ments for finance lease o042 of 0

4 Cash payments for the redemption of treasury shares and decrease of 043 0 0

initial (subscnbed) capltal ’ o e -

5 Other cash payments from fnancmg acnvmes ) ] 044 o .0

Vi Total cash payments from ﬂnancing activities (ADP 040 to 044) 045 0 -509.856

C) NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (ADP 039 +045) i '0,'4:6: : ‘ 0 . ~,  395:961

1 Unrealused exchange rate differences in cash and cash equrvalents 047 e 0 ‘ 235
D) NET INCREASE OR DECREASE OF CASH FLOWS (ADP '

020+034+046+047) | | | 04’8” 141,632 ,‘;-786 245

E) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF PERIOD 049 1.093.529 951.897

F) CASH AND CASH EQU!VALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD(ADP 050 951,807 165.652

048+049)
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HOTELI JADRAN D.D. GRADAC

1D-5213-2104 15
HOTELI JADRAN DD
NOTICE OF THE

HOTELI JADRAN d.d. HOTELI JADRAN d.d. e
Jadranska 2 Jadranska 2 HE SHARE CAPITAL
21330 Gradac 21330 Gradac e
Uprava Drustva Management Board of the company

Gradac, 15.04.2021. godine

NADZORNOM ODBORU DRUSTVA

GLAVNOJ SKUPSTINI DRUSTVA

PREDMET: Obavijest o postojanju gubitka u
visini polovine temeljnog kapitala

Nakon $to je Uprava u novom sastavu preuzela
vodenje poslova Drustva napravila je dubinsku
analizu poslovanja te je donijela odluke &ija je
provedba u poslovnim knjigama rezultirala
evidentiranjem gubitaka u visini vecoj od polovine
temeljnog kapitala, kao $to se obrazlaze u nastavku,
o ¢emu Uprava Zeli izvijestiti Nadzorni odbor i
Glavnu skupstinu.

Prilikom dubinske analize utvrdeno je da postoje
potraZivanja prema povezanim druStvima starija od
365 dana u iznosu od 27.017.841,21 kn, te je Uprava
donijela odluku o ispravku potrazivanja od
prenesenih druStava §to je zatim u poslovnim
knjigama evidentirano kao pogreska prethodnih
razdoblja. S obzirom da je navedena odluka
rezultirala evidentiranjem prenesenih gubitaka u
iznosu od 27.017.841,21 kn, Uprava je donijela
odluku da ¢ée se preneseni gubici pokriti na sljedeci
nadin:

1. preneseni gubitak u iznosu od 211.078,41
kn, na teret zadrZzane dobiti koja ¢ini razliku
zadrzane dobiti i prenesenih gubitaka iz
prethodnih razdoblja,

2. preneseni gubitak u iznosu od
12.064.778,05 kn, na teret ostalih rezervi,

3. preneseni gubitak u iznosu od 2.970.050,00
kn, na teret zakonskih rezervi,

4. ostatak od 11.771.934,75 kn ¢ini preneseni
gubitak.

Gradac, 15.04.2021.

SUPERVISORY BOARD OF THE
COMPANY

GENERAL MEETING OF THE
COMPANY

SUBJECT: Notice of the existence of a loss of
half of the share capital

After the new Management Board took over the
management of the Company, it made a due
diligence analysis of operations and made decisions
whose implementation in the business books resulted
in recording losses of more than half of the share
capital, as explained below, which the Management
Board wishes to inform the Supervisory Board and
the General Assembly.

During the due diligence analysis, it was determined
that there are receivables from affiliated companies
older than 365 days in the amount of HRK
27,017,841.21, and the Management Board made a
decision to correct receivables from transferred
companies, which was then recorded in the books as
an error of previous periods. Considering that the
mentioned decision resulted in the recording of
transferred losses in the amount of HRK
27,017,841.21, the Management Board made a
decision that the transferred losses will be covered as
follows:

1. retained loss in the amount of HRK
211,078.41, by retained eamings, which is
the difference between retained earnings
and retained losses from previous periods,

2. transferred loss in the amount of HRK
12,064,778.05, by other reserves,

3. transferred loss in the amount of HRK
2,970,050.00, by legal reserves,

4. the remaining HRK 11,771,934.75
constitutes a loss carried forward.
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Godisnjim financijskim izvjes¢em sa stanjem na dan
31.12.2020.g. utvrden je gubitak poslovne 2020.g. u
iznosu od 42.352.859,49 kn, koji je nastao dijelom
nastao dijelom iz poslovnih rezultata, dijelom zbog
odluke o ispravku vrijednosti ulaganja u povezana
drustva u iznosu od 5.554.300,00 kn, a najvecim
dijelom zbog odluke o evidentiranju rezerviranja za
sudske sporove u iznosu od 30.390.582,01 kn u
odnosu na postupak OVR-48/2019 koji se vodi pred
Op¢inskim sudom u Makarskoj — Stalna sluzba u
Imotskom.

Ukupni gubici tako iznose 54.124.794,24 kn
(42.352.859,49 kn gubitka poslovne 2020.g. uvecano
za 11.771.934,75 kn prenesenog gubitka koji je
nastao kao rezultat dogadaja opisanih u drugom
pasusu).

S obzirom da godisnjim financijskim izvjeS¢ima
utvrden gubitak u visini (veéoj od) polovine
temeljnoga kapitala Drustva, sukladno ¢l. 251.
Zakona o trgovackim drustvima Uprava pristupa
hitnom sazivanju skupstine kako bi je o tome
izvijestila. Ujedno, sukladno ¢l. 10. st. 1. tocki 1.
Zakona o financijskom poslovanju i predstecajnoj
nagodbi, Uprava predlaze Nadzornom odboru mjeru
potrebnu za ostvarenje adekvatnosti kapitala koja se
sastoji u pojednostavnjenom smanjenju temeljnog
kapitala na nacin da se gubitak ostvaren u godini koja
je zavrsila 31. prosinca 2020.g. u visini od
42.352.859,49 kn, dijelom pokrije na teret zakonskih
rezervi i rezervi kapitala u iznosu od 973.442,28 kn,
a preostali dio gubitka u iznosu od 41.379.417,21 kn
kao i iznos prenesenog gubitka iz prethodnog
razdoblja u iznosu od 11.771.934,75 kn, dakle u
ukupnom iznosu od 53.151.351,96 kn pokriju (4.
predlaze se da situacija uzrokovana gubitkom bude
rijeSena) pojednostavnjenim smanjenjem temeljnog
kapitala Drustva. Pojednostavnjenim smanjenjem
temeljnog kapitala iznos temeljnog kapitala smanjio
bi se s 74.980.500,00 kuna, za 53.557.500,00 kuna,
na 21.423.000,00 kuna.

Radi zaokruZivanja nominalnog iznosa dionice na
visekratnik broja 10, razlika izmedu iznosa za koji bi
se smanjio temeljni kapital Drustva 1 iznosa
kumuliranih gubitaka i gubitaka 2020.g. koji se
pokrivaju smanjenjem temeljnog kapitala, koja
razlika iznosi 406.148,04 kn, prenijela bi se u pricuve
Drustva — rezerve kapitala.

Annual financial report as of 31.12.2020.g.
determined the loss of business in 2020 in the amount
of HRK 42,352,859.49, which arose partly from
business results, partly due to the decision to adjust
the value of investments in affiliated companies in
the amount of HRK 5,554,300.00, and mostly due to
the decision to record provisions for court disputes in
the amount of HRK 30,390,582.01 in relation to the
procedure OVR-48/2019 which is being conducted
before the Municipal Court in Makarska - Permanent
Service in Imotski.

The total losses thus amount to HRK 54,124,794.24
(HRK 42,352,859.49 of the loss for the business year
2020, increased by HRK 11,771,934.75 of the loss
carried forward as a result of the events described in
the second paragraph).

Considering that the annual financial reports
determined a loss in the amount of (more than) half
of the share capital of the Company, in accordance
with Art. 251 of the Companies Act, the
Management Board approaches the urgent
convening of the General Meeting in order to inform
it. At the same time, in accordance with Art. 10
paragraph 1 item 1 of the Financial Operations and
Pre-Bankruptcy Settlement Act, the Management
Board proposes to the Supervisory Board the
measure necessary to achieve capital adequacy,
which consists in a simplified reduction of share
capital so that the loss realized in the year ended 31
December 2020. in the amount of HRK
42,352,859.49, shall be partly covered by legal
reserves and capital reserves in the amount of HRK
973,442.28, and the remaining part of the loss in the
amount of HRK 41,379,417.21 as well as the amount
of transferred loss from the previous period in the
amount of of HRK 11,771,934.75, ie in the total
amount of HRK 53,151,351.96 shall be covered (ie,
the situation caused by the loss is proposed to be
addressed) by a simplified reduction of the
Company's share capital. By simplifying the
reduction of share capital, the amount of share capital
would be reduced from HRK 74,980,500.00, by
HRK 53,557,500.00, to HRK 21,423,000.00.

In order to round the nominal amount of the share to
the multiple of number 10, the difference between the
amount by which the share capital of the Company
would be reduced and the amount of cumulated
losses and losses in 2020. which are covered by the
reduction of share capital, which difference amounts
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Navedeno smanjenje temeljnog kapitala provelo bi
se smanjenjem nominalnog iznosa dionica drustva sa
700,00 (sedamsto) kuna, za 500,00 (petsto) kuna, na
200,00 (dvjesto) kuna.

Nakon smanjenja temeljni kapital Drustva iznosio bi
21.423.000,00 kuna, i bio bi podijeljen je na 107.115
dionica, svaka dionica nominalne vrijednosti od po
200,00 (dvjesto) kuna.

/W

to HRK 406,148.04, would be transferred to the
Company's reserves - capital reserves.

The stated reduction of the share capital would be
carried out by reducing the nominal amount of the
company's shares from HRK 700.00 (seven hundred)
by HRK 500.00 (five hundred) to HRK 200.00 (two
hundred).

After the reduction, the share capital of the Company
would amount to HRK 21,423,000.00, and would be
divided into 107,115 shares, each share with a
nominal value of HRK 200.00 (two hundred).

—HOTELI JADRAN d.d.

Cecilia Nikoletta Fata
Predsjednica uprave / President of the Management Board
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